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%7] % IITJ ' Deloitte & Touche

12th Floor, HUNG TAI FINANCIAL PLAZA
156 Min Sheng East Road, Sec. 3
Taipei 10596, Taiwan, ROC

Tel: +886 (2) 2545-9988

Fax: +886 (2) 2545-9966
www.deloitte.com.tw
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B LAMBRAXAETE ARARRAEMB AT BUAFEEF-AIt—n2R
BHI LS HESR (HKDS$1 - NT$4.233) #% & -

o RAZFEEFENEERS RBKATFHEEL T
i E = &K L #
Atk HKDS$1 : NT$4.328 HKDS$1 : NT$3.854 HKD$1 : NT$4.050
Atx HKD$1 : NT$4.270 HKD$1 : NT$4.143 HKD$1 : NT$4.211

ATE HKD$1 : NT$4.281

HKD$1 : NT$4.043

~ '_1/\/
—

HKD$1 : NT$4.188

Lt tHE+-_BF=+—8 ARt+txE+=_F=+—08
& wOw & ®OE wH & s
EREEE ~
REA $ 2,280,183 $ 9,652,015 $ 1,662,323 $ 7,036,613
> A 65,219 276,072 25,641 108,538
i e 4,846 20,513 1,065 4,508
A RERE 104,632 442 907 - -
FEREBEHRRAZELRE 96,916 410,245 6,656 28,175
HERHELBETE 33,306 140,984 120,607 510,529
ERBHEESE 2,585,102 10,942,736 1,816,292 _ 7,688,363
REEE
# & 821,866 3,478,959 727,751 3,080,570
FEOIR R 2,863,214 12,119,985 1,582,689 6,699,523
BRI E K 74,205 314,110 443,525 1,877,441
FEATEHIE - BLHBEELREHERR 216,247 915,374 166,546 704,989
FENLBRY R 24,381 103,205 28,256 119,608
BIRITHERREHER 108,933 461,113 53,221 225,284
RERHERS 450,508 1,907,000 406,019 _ 1,718,678
REBEEST 4,559,354 19,299,746 3,408,007 14,426,093
REBaE
BAERHREZH 1,530,098 6,476,905 1,398,375 5,919,321
ERAHEBEAER 570,584 2,415,282 330,510 1,399,049
BATFIFH, 101,685 430,433 84,705 358,556
JENCIE 2R IB AR 2 4R AT Sk 74,205 314,110 443,525 1,877,441
A X BATER 947,328 4,010,039 757,178 3,205,134
ik B R 3,223 900 13,646,769 3,014,293 12,759,501
REEEFHE 1,335,454 5,652,977 393,714 _ 1,666,592
LEERAS AR 3,920,556 16,595,713 2,210,006 9,354,955
EFE A
B2 RATHE 930,060 3,936,944 - -
HEIEREREE 9,081 38,440 25,626 108,475
EHE EEA 939,141 3,975,384 25,626 108,475
FEE $ 2981415 $12,620,329 $ 2184380 $ 9246480
RS
GENANIREZ L EMS
BETRA $ 100,000 $ 423300 $ 100,000 $ 423,300
£ # 2,670,280 11,303,295 2,011,143 8,513,168
BERE 50,000 211,650 - -
2,820,280 11,938,245 2,111,143 8,936,468
PHERESR 161,135 682,084 73,237 310,012
EREABR $ 2981415 $12,620.329 $ 2184380 $ 9246480
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B8 REA A ( 31,156) (  131,883) ( 23,671) ( 100,199)
HEER ( 360,154) ( 1,524532) ( 271,942) ( 1,151,131)
EwE R ( 26,943) ( 114,050) ( 12,688) ( 53,708)
A R A ( 75113) (  317953) ( 99,940) (  423,046)
BB AT E - - 1,312 5,554
RATHH 818,850 3,466,192 484,199 2,049,614
FEHRE R (__130280) (__551475) ( 57,338) (___242712)
AEEFZE $ 688,570 $ 2914717 $ 426,861 $ 1,806,902
BT : S ;
ANEEER $ 658,295 $ 2,786,563 $ 409,988 . $ 1,735479
b HAER 30,275 128,154 16,873 71423
$ 688570 $ 2914717 $ 426861 $ 1,806,902 -
B A& $ 50,000 $ 211650 $ - $ -
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SHE%ER)
ERERBE $ 65.8 $ 279 - $ 41.0 $ 1.74
HEEREBA $ 64.3 $ 2.72 $ 40.2 $ 1.70
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E ¥ H 2 A F
REAtTEERAT AT -A—BE+-A=+—1
B BEFA FEBEAFL
A+ £ & E A+ # &
% M & K B # & %
BEEZGRLRE
RATH $ 818,850 $ 3,466,192 $ 484,199 $ 2,049,614
HEEEE
BE R A 75,113 317,953 99,940 423,046
BN ( 10,204) ( 43194) ( 11,517) 48,751)
B B ( 3,058) ( 12,945) ( 2,166) 9,169)
ROBHEESBEENS - - | 1,030) 4,360)
% 204,891 867,304 168,198 711,982
EabdE R AR S 792 3,353 524 2,218
HEEREESFR 11,097 46,974 2,551 10,798
BRAREEER 42,159 178,459 28,524 120,742
EIROBEER 16,149 68,358 9,462 40,052
BEWBNARIERAZALSR

A - S 4,576) 19,370)

oy A& - - 1,312) 5,554 )

1,155,789 4,892,454 772,797 3,271,248
F R Ao ( 95,169) (  402,850) ( 83,001 ) 351,343 )
JE MR R o ( 1,162211) ( 4919,639) (  627436) 2,655,936)
BRI AR (o)

Y 369,320 1563332 69,827 ) 295,578 )
BH#E - FHERELR LR ,

JE AR IE Jm ( 44153) ( 186,900) ( 13,318) 56,375 )
MAEMEBRE S (Hw) &R 3,875 16,403  ( 20,177 ) 85,409)
JEA PR3 B B Ao 22,334 94,540 570,049 2,413,016
EA AT R R IEAT & A3

(&L ) 80,961 342,708  ( 21,003) 88,906 )
JE AR B AR 2 RATH R o
(&) _ (___369320) (_1563332) 49,579 209,868
EEFGHZRALAAN (B) ( 38,574) (  163,284) 557,663 2,360,585
AT ¥ B REAFR (  114360) (  484,086) ( 54,114) 229,065)
AT ES AR ( 340) ( 1439) ( 1,154) 4,885)
RE T B AMRAER 1,400 5,926 - -
W ELH] B 10,204 43,194 11,517 48,751
XAHH B ( 75113) (__317,954) ( 99,940) 423,045)
TEFTHIEFRLEN
(&) (__216,783) (__917,643) 413,972 1,752,341
BEZGHRLRE L
BEBREE ( 555245) ( 2350352) ( 217,216) 919,475)
PEE LibdE A ( 22,270) ( 94,269) ( 142) 601)
HEBRRZEEMER 17,685 74,861 9,192 38,910

(#RE)




(ARE)

L+ £ F E A+ F K
% B M6 % B ¥ M6 B
BEGHLEELBRTA $ - $ - ($ 17,163) ($  72,651)
HEBuLELBERE - - 18,193 77,011
B BE B 3,058 12,945 2,166 9,169
BITRATHFREZHEHR ()
B ( 55,614) (  235414) 103,270 437,143
BN LR ( 104,632) (  442,907) - -
TR RAAEE TR o ( 39,996) (  169,303) ( 5,851 ) 24,767 )
WO > BORHE ( 26,359) (  111,578) - -
BRI B A 8] ( 83443) (__353214) ( 2,727) 11,543)
BREFGHZFRLRY (___866816) (_3,669231) (__ 110,278) 466,804 )
BEETHRLRE
DEERHER 32,688 138,368 - -
MIWBATH 3,227,550 13,662,219 1,938,659 8,206,344
RERITHR (_2154,574) (_9120312) (_2021582) 8,557,357 )
BETHZEFRLAA (H) 1,105,664 4680275 ( 82,923) 351,013)
RERAEREH 22,065 93,401 220,771 934,524
EMRERYEREHRE 406,019 1,718,678 179,547 760,022
FEL S B E 22,424 94,921 5,701 24,132°
FRERERYERLLE $ 450508 $ 1,907,000 $ 406,019 $ 1,71_"8,6?78;-
RERDERLBREIN oo
RAERBATHR $ 450.508 $ 1,907,000 $ 406,019 $ 1,718,678

B LI MAEREZFEABAE  AUA+TEtEF A —BrAEHFLBESR

(HKD$1 : NT$4.233) #% % -

& &

in E = &
-t HKDS$1 : NT$4.328
Hutx HKDS$1 : NT$4.270
At I HKD$1: NT$4.281

HKD$1 : NT$3.854
HKD$1 : NT$4.143
HKD$1 : NT$4.043

HKD$1 : NT$4.050

“HKD$1 : NT$4.211

HKD$1 : NT$4.188
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$1,103,568 $4,671,403 $1,096,463 $4,641,327

371 1,570 249 1,054
28 119 25 106
399 1,689 274 1,160
5,588 23,654 3,032 12,834

( 5189) (___21,965) ( 2,758) (___ 11,674)

$1,098,379 $4,649438 $1,093,705 $4,629.653

$ 100,000 $ 423,300 $ 100,000 $ 423,300
948,379 4,014,488 993,705 4,206,353
50,000 211,650 - -

$1,098,379 $4,649.438 $1,093,705 $4,629,653
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Bz A EH o HES (HKDSL : NT$4.233) # ¥ -
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EAh 25,607 17,561
7,144,456 5,224,299
PDEEARF L
—EENE —ETLF
THxT T T
PR K B 575,749 214,775
hERE 1,763 2,030
Efb 3 411
577,515 217,216
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6. WA HWARKS

WARSERAKENLEXE R hESR.
B UYEECHMEEEARMNEARZHE -

WA~ B AR SR DT

A
HEEY

Htr A
B WA
EBEWA
BHERER
BB A

BB S Gt AR ZE (AaE32(b))

AL A
BREHREER
Hth

iy 28
BEE 3 U 25 5 B
Hit

MBEZEEMEZREY EXBEBTENR - RERRXZFTMOHHK

—EENF —ETF
TR FAET
7,249,183 5,275,832
10,204 11,517
850 1,232
43,973 25,606
3,058 2,166

- 4,576

- 3,385

35,427 -
5,698 11,039
99,210 59,521

- 34,427

- 1,030

- 35,457

99,210 94,978
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BEEFRHIRAN
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e
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LEMONKERS
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E
WHEREFERE

BERANRAX (TEREZEME —HiZ9):
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VA RS #2852

BRRFTBIHR
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HEWE - BERRENEEFE*
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—EE\F+-A=+-A

KEE

—EENFE —ETLF
FE T FET
75,113 99,932

- 8

75,113 99,940
—EENE —EELF
FET FAT
5,971,928 4,413,995
3,000 2,720
204,891 168,198
792 524
9,727 6,702
6,109 6,231
42,159 28,524
793,561 595,772
14,094 8,138
30,482 16,784
838,137 620,694
5,684 (34,427)
11,097 2,551
- (3,385)
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MRBLAREF (&)
& REBRRPATEEKA] -

o BARNRE AT MR (A Rk ] -

*rx RABEAREIHRANESMREB 2 XD RN SIEBMRE - WERZSRMEEMRENNKGREMIAS
F o
EEME

BREEBHAXIMARARTIZSF LHRAN EHRNDEREERAGHEI61EETREFANESTHEe W
T

AEHE

—EENE —ETF

FET TAET

we 594 591
E :

e RUREYF = 5,085 4,641

LA RS 45 B RE I R B =2 2,055 1,324

BRIREFT IR 12 12

7,152 5,977

7,746 6,568

AERN ETEFERRFASAKEMEHRNRBER TARRBREFSBETHRERE £ PHBHNYH
BIARME30(c) - ZEBRENAFEDR KL AHER  YERFBRANERRRAER Mt ARFER
BEFEMBBRERNESBTEERRELXNEETHERER -
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BEEME»)
REENHE_ZEN\E+-_A=+—HILFENMES T T :
4.
ERR DRELEE EikE
EERF ik BNFE BRERY TEIHR “an s
TER TER TER TER TER
ByELAE = 860 = = 860
By EhE - 774 = = 774
BERLAE - 774 682 = 1,456
HEELE = 665 535 = 1,200
BEBEAE = 731 535 = 1,266
HRABLAE - 1,281 303 12 1,596
FEREAE 115 = = = 115
IRELE 83 - - = 83
BYRLE 198 - - = 198
EEBLE 198 = = = 198
594 5,085 2,055 12 7,746

REENBE_ZETLF+_A=T—RHILFENMENT :

e

ZE R MRS E RIKE
EZHA ik EWHR ERERS ST Bl 5R B %
T FET TEL TEL T
HyELEE - 798 - - 798
HyEhE - 718 = = 718
FEN A - 718 568 = 1,286
HERLE - 617 284 = 901
BERERE - 678 284 = 962
GHABTE - 1,112 188 12 1,312
FEREE 199 - - - 199
BYHELE 199 - - - 199
EEELE 193 - - - 193
591 4,641 1,324 12 6,568

REAR > TEEET VT ALHRRXARERET ML
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‘ (ZZ2TLF  —R)BSIFFEZRENMESFBLT :

/I AEEEALERSFHEERE=-R(Z2ZT Lt NREF  FHEMSFBIAR LXWFI - AFEHEKMA

\ -
' —EENE —ETF
' FET FAET
’ e EMEEYH=E 958 439
TE4T 160 76
LA RS e 4 BB A A 2 1,341 421
2,459 936

R IFEEREAENEMEELRT

EEAH
—EEN\E —EELF
£ % 1,000,000/ 7T - 1
1,000,001 721,500,000/ 7T 2 =
2 1
AKERN ZATeHEEEEEHERMAEEMRERARGER FTARRBRETZE T ZBRE  E£—F
HBHARYBRERMFIN(OZIFEAN - ZFBRENATFEIRIRE BEER  YERRBEHRNEBERAE

R M ARFERBEFEVERERNSENEBER EXNGEEEHIEZEEMHSHER -
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e N

Bi1E
HRAEENAFEVEEEBSESERR S - BB IERDENESRBE - E b2 ERFa AT IE
BEAEBRKLEENAAEEREANAG  RENES - RABAZEERE RN R1HE -
—BENF I
FE& T T T
NF [
BNHER — A B (B ERRSN)
AEERZ 65,924 46,746
BEFEEETRE 4,386 1,332
BIHA — /84N
AEERZ 61,014 2,770
BEFEEETTE 356 1,129
B (1,400) =
EIERIE — (KfaE18) - 5,361
ANEEHIBRS B 130,280 57,338

RAARAEREKRILAMB AR EMAEEEREEREAAENRRANENOHIARS - BEREBEEREK X

HoBERS R - RABRE(AUAER R ) BERMROHIRMT
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7, 1 B
I/ ARE-—STNF
A

" BaTER/(BR)

AT R ENHE
EEHE

L UEON

B

FAHRAR

BRNEHE DRHRERR

BAEEERH RN ENHIERY
. AEE - —BE+E

BBATER/ (BR)
AT R ENHE
LEES

BEBBRA

Hf#He

AR

BRAESR NAREHE
HREEHEAE

BASEERRE G BORERX

REAE
i (BRRN) 85
TR % TR % TiEn % TiEn %
(24,247) 569,989 273,108 818,850
(4,001) 16.5 130,412 29 68217 250 194,688 238
- - (64,521) (113) - - (64,521) (.9)
- - (399) (0.1)  (8,250) (3.0)  (8,649) (1.1)
- - (1,400) (0.2) - - (1,400) (0.2)
4,001 (16.5) 432 - 987 0.4 5,420 0.7
- - 4,386 0.8 356 0.1 4,182 0.6
- - 68910 121 61,370 225 130,280 15.9
EARE
BB (BARI) A5
T % T % T % THL %
(19,334) 490,028 13,505 484,199
(3,383) 175 142,69 29.1 3,376 250 142,689 29.5
- - (88,034) (18.0) - - (88,034) (18.2)
- - - - (823) (6.1) (823) (0.2)
- - (10,864) (2.2) - - (10,864) (2.2)
3,383 (17.5) 2,948 0.6 - - 6,331 13
- - 1332 0.3 1,129 8.4 2,461 0.5
- - 2,926 0.6 2,652 19.6 5,578 1.2
- - 51,004 10.4 6,334 469 57338 1.9

RZZZLF=ZA+AH FTEZEARRKRRGELRGZRETEARANMBEEMSTER(THEER
BEE]D) > MEBRETR-_ZTLE+-ANBEMEHERAR(TEAIEBRAA])  ZAUKEA =TT
NFE-B—BEER - REFEXMEVE  BARKIBRECENASHEE ST N\F-A—BEKE—R

25% °
PR & A LE

BRI E#N-—RETHRESSEMSHERRIBRNEE  THEZ
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e N

BiE )

ARBNMBARAMEEMEF(FMNBERABR(TARER DRBE_STNFT _A=T—"BLEFEHHREX
B25% (ZFTEF 1 12%) - RBEFE - REEHZEB R 12%HEBNPEAELEMEH @ A
RAMERS—FKALAOBENIIERERERE - REEFRTILL 2B RAEMED - KEREKRESTER
RIRBHRRRESRLBRADEREH

BRERBEAN-_ZSTNFOA+=AZFEOI  ARFANMHBRARGMNAKEEMEFERAR(TEHMNAE])
NHRERTBINERERELE AR EBEMR24%MMFIIE - 1ih - BNABAIINERECE  AEE
BNEEBEE_ST=F+_A=+—"HBLLFE)EMFRLANAEH - RB=FR¥EK - A - AR
HEMNAEREECHFELCETREANEAR  ARFHMAERETENBBAMSHEREERHEREFEFR
E_TTME-F-HHENEE - HNABRBE T N\E+_A=+-BHIFEHRXE125% (=F
TEF 12%) °

ARFANBATERET (L) ERAF(ERET RN LEWTHANTEE BERBEE - ZATDNE
E-TTN\FH-A=+ALFENBERS%(ZTTLE  15%) -

ARAMBRARRIERARHELERAB(RIEMDR24%MEEH R - WIIHRET BB HEE
RINARERERE - I BUEANTBIERELE A EEEENFR(NBE_FTLF+ A=
T—ALFE)EMFERRBAAGEHR  BER=ZFRHFBK - BUBARBE_SZTLFR_TZN\F+_H
=t HALIMEFEERREEMER -

RAFRERSE AEGRF

HE_ZZ\F+_A=T—"HLLFE ARABREFEABGEGEEGRMNBEER AR MEHERTEREZE
811,475,000 L ( — T+ 4 : 8,432,000/8 7T ) (KizE31(b)) °

S g=)
—EEN\F —BTLF
THR FAT
EERBRE -SRLBRSEW(ZBRLE : T) 50,000 -

AERZZRAYREAKARABRERERRBFAS L1 -
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RARREFEABGLGERER

FRRE R B R TR E AR QD G A A (G 2N 2 4% 7658,295,000/8 7T ( —ZZ+4F : 409,988,000/ 7T) &
REEDE1TRZ 1,000,000,0000% AEEAHE o

BIREEAT DB IERR A RERE A ARG ANFEH 658,295,000 0 ( —ZZ 4 : 409,988,000/ 7T ) 5
& - A ERTE R RRD N 1 S A & E AR A A B F A N F 9 SR & 1,000,000,00088 F A E BEITRD ©
MR ETA AE e B ER M BIEITEARDEm NRREZETHRMD NEFHEA24,001,990( Z T+

£ :19,372,9800%) °

REHE
B £8
TR RENE RBAE
BT %5 e B RE ERIR @t
TEn TEn TEn TER TEn TEn TER
—“EZ\5+-A=t+-H
RZEZ+E+-A=+-BR

“EEN\E-A—-H:

XA 638,721 3,892 1,340,603 151,194 12,813 14,859 2,162,082

ZEME (91,303) (2,923)  (339,365) (59,087) (7,081) - (499,759)

REFE 547,418 969 1,001,238 92,107 5,732 14,859 1,662,323
W-EE\E—A-H"

IR EFNE 547,418 969 1,001,238 92,107 5,732 14,859 1,662,323
NE 11,114 - 123,077 50,334 1,162 369,558 555,245
WK B AR (Hz#32(a) 57,092 - 107,146 7,251 546 39,305 211,340
gy 56,777 501 132,568 46,401 - (236,247) -
e (577) - (18,597) (3,636) (1,067) (4,905) (28,782)
FRTERE (33,289) (382)  (136,122) (33,075) (2,023) - (204,891)
[E 5 AR 27,278 30 52,064 4,522 290 764 84,948
W_EENE+-A=1+—H"

B EGTE 665,813 1,118 1,261,374 163,904 4,640 183,334 2,280,183
R-ZZN\F+-f=1+-8:

XA 816,569 5549 1,803,574 265,768 12,102 183,334 3,086,896

ZiME (150,756) (4,431)  (542,200)  (101,864) (7,462) - (806,713)

R FE 665,813 1,118 1,261,374 163,904 4,640 183,334 2,280,183
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e N

Gk £2
Tk HENE RHAE
BT i 3 B HE ERIR 3t
TEL TEL T F#x T T Fix
“EE+F+-A=1—H
R-BE+E—f—H:

KA 566,603 3,238 1,079,148 112,823 11,955 7,246 1,781,013

ZEE (55,101) (2,472)  (204,881) (34,027) (5,625) = (302,106)

IR FE 511,502 766 874,267 78,796 6,330 7,246 1,478,907
R_EE+F—F—-H"

Nk 2FHeE 511,502 766 874,267 78,796 6,330 7,246 1,478,907
AE 9,684 483 153,476 24,364 866 28,343 217,216
WEEHIB AR (H17232(b)) 14,032 = 15,439 370 870 = 30,711
Ly 3,654 = 6,497 6,637 = (16,788) =
HE (940) = (4.676) (1,053) (670) (4,404) (11,743)
FRNERE (29,875) (288)  (112,768) (23,103) (2,164) = (168,198)
R A% 39,361 8 69,003 6,096 500 462 115,430
RZEZ+E+-A=1-1"

NBREGTE 547,418 969 1,001,238 92,107 5,732 14,859 1,662,323
RZBZ+E+-A=+-H:

KA 638,721 3,892 1,340,603 151,194 12,813 14,859 2,162,082

2EE (91,303) (2,923)  (339,365) (59,087) (7,081) = (499,759)

IR FE 547,418 969 1,001,238 92,107 5,732 14,859 1,662,323
ANEEM T RIEFIHATHEFEA ¢

—EENEF —EELF
FET FETT

IR EFE
BB AINKA SRR i 3,921 3,996
ERNIINFHBELOE T HENET 661,892 543,422
665,813 547,418

R-ZEBEENF+_A=+—H  REFES F£462,873,0008 T ( ZFZ+ 4 : 89,338,000/ 7T) & T ARE
Bt BFREEELEIF  (EAAEEMES THRITEENERKIE27) -
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7, 16

T RE
AEE

—EEN\E —EELF
FExT T T
R—A—HBH/NIREE 25,641 22,489
FRARE 22,270 142
U BB B A R (M a£32) 16,797 1,733
FRNEER (792) (524)
P& 7 A 1,303 1,801
R+t A=+—HB/iREE 65,219 25,641

AEEM TG APBBEORE  XURBFBAIMEE

RZZZTNFE+_A=+—H ' REFES L£#6,858,0008 L ( —FEZF L : 6,640,000 0)E TARER +
HE TR (EALAEERES THRITEENERE27) °

ma
AEE
FE T
RZZFFTLF—A—B ZFTTLF+A=+—AK
—EENF—-A—BHRAKIKEERE 1,065
g D E R RS 1,498
U BB B A R (M a£32(a)) 2,283
RIBENEFE+-_A=+—BHKARIEERE 4,846
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e N

i I BE R
BB EEE \\\\

o FR P 385 5% TR B SR R | \’
. !l\
—EBEENEF —EELF ‘
T i
F1) - 5,296
FANEBRRINBELERE(fE11) - (5,361)
B XA - 65

T4 :12,072,0008 L) MBRFEER - WAl HEHFE B ENMNBR RN B RERTREN - ARATEL

F, - -
REFESFINTE R ERBEELS57,376,0008 T ( —FZE+4F : 64,101,000 7T ) & 15,252,000/ T (=F
EOARBEERENERT RS HUEREEEERAELCHBEE -

EEBEEE
AEHE
—EENE
Y B2 Bt B B
DRAEED HEREEEN
AR EAE AFERE Mt
FET FExT FET
R-_ZEZENF—H—H = 25,626 25,626
FRNERDFT ARBELERIE = (21,795) (21,795)
W BE BB R R) (M7 a£32(a)) 5,250 = 5,250
RZZEENF+_A=1+—HH
BIRERIAAE 5,250 3,831 9,081
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e, 18 BEBE#)
/] M FE B E B (41)

Nl AEE(E)
’“ —EELF
l,
REEEN
NTEFE
FHET
R-_EE+F—H—H =
F N 1E #E 2 0 R Y IR RE 7 IR 25,626

ENF-A-HRER WEAR-_ZZLF+ A=+ BREENET - WMPBEEINEIKEEMERER
BHEEARGHFBAUAMRBERMRERHER - AKRENERTRER5% - At - AEEBRZFNTEKE

RS+ F+ - A=+—HWRELHEEE 25,626
MO EMESFEABEEMRAIIRIEEES RN B ARREKZNINE D EREBRI0%TEN - BRBREA-F
RYRBARG —EENF— A —BEEEANATNM DR B H B -

RZZBZENF+_A=1—"HB FREMNBARNKREELAMAEZSECHRABNERUEZEATOR

RZZZENF+_A=+—H  BAEBER B B KFEERKZ A E QB ARE 8B40 TE 05 /Y 2 F i E R 78
WS AEBYARERTMELRE ZEERE ZSMNERARRTEERSREBBINEKSTAK -
412,227, 0008 L(ZEZ+LF : F) »
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TR Bf i 4
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LR - AR

& o Bt /B8 2 )
B tn B b &

BRTHBARMNRELSEER REREETERY - ARBAEFAS

Bl

BAEER - REHERRFEMIREAEREEL A FERES

MEBARFEMT

AEER

Best Alliance Holding Inc.

AEERERAF]

VERRKEEERAT

KIE S 1 (B M)
BERAR*@

EfRIL
it B

RERXES

((BxES])

BED

BA

hE

ERTREM
BA /&
EFmHE

52,600,000 7T
EBR
49,777,419% L
EBR
100,000/ 7T
L

52,500,000 T
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ZNNS|
—2EN\F —TELHF
FTEx FTET
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302,735 309,610
23,475 9,495
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RHEB AR &)

DAFEER

FMABEREN

BRAFE

ABERERAR

ARBEBRERAT

AHERAR

=HXERBRAR

Applied Business

Company Inc.

ICAN Business Limited

HEUBHERAR

Hempton International

Limited

2ERRBRAR

EREF(LE)
BRAF*@

MR,
it B

HE

BED

BE:

BE:

BE:

BXES

BLEE

PERE

BE:

BE

hE

ERTREH
BA /R
e

83,500,000 7T

12,800,000% T

Hak

12,800,000% T
L@

1,000,000% T
L@

1,000,000% 7T
LER

1,500,000% 7
EBR

1,500,000 7T
LER

5,000,000%7 & #
LR
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L@
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EBR

12,500,000% T
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RERATREE#)

DEER

FAREBRAA

Mindforce Holdings Limited

EEEEARAR

el

BUBMEH(EL)
BERRA*@

Plentimark Limited

IR R PIRE B S RIS

BRAR@

EERERAA

RERZEA(RIL)
BRAR*@
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RTES

BA

BIES

R

BED

BA

hE

ERTREM
BA /&R
&FmHE

18T ERER

25,000,000 7T
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EBR
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DAFEER

FEERERAAC

REERARAA

XBBERLDAH

BEERERAF
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* RIEHBEDEPIEMAINEBE AT -

I ERERERAR

ERRIL,
it B
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PERE

BE:

BE:

PERE

hE

hE

ERTKES
BRA
BAHEE
2,000,000 &

2,000,000 & &

13,447,128% T

11,449,800% 7T
LER

5,000,000%7 4 &

L

13,100,000% 7T

500,000% 7T

FATELE
e §
Hi BF:3

100%

= 100%
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AEBEMGETEER RN TFI0E120K - BEE HHRIBANFFIE -

REER  AKERZEREHNEKEZFAMERERKE ZFHBAREKITAT

FEWE 5 FE

318 A A
4Z6f8 A
7Z1218 A
HBiE1F

EREEWE S KA

3ME A A
4=61E A

r&EHE
—EENF —ETLHF
FEx FTET
413,021 380,303
203,543 213,600
121,580 98,726
83,722 35,122
821,866 727,751

FEME
—EENF —EELF
TR TR
1,827,885 1,159,938
1,030,249 417,778
3,491 3,654
1,589 1,319
2,863,214 1,582,689
74,205 172,345
- 271,180
74,205 443,525
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21. EWEZFIE (&)
m A4S AR E R R S BB R IE B AT

|
H% KEE
’ —BENE —BTHF
m FER T
' B a B MO E 2,799,044 1,442,484
’ BER1Z=31E A 61,082 135,476
BHEIAZ= 618 A 1,696 3,174
wEA7ZE 1218 A 963 162
BB 429 1,393
2,863,214 1,582,689
BMESHERENERESHEARSZ T EFPER 2SI ER AL
ERfEERENERESRBEEASEBYRFEH  ZSEFARAEEBERTFERLR -  BEBELR &
RAESRADERZEHEBELRERE  FREZERFPNEELEZTEE NS MHARENESG AT 2 S
B o AEBEVESZSEMRFEEMNEFRREREMINBEERE -

R-ZEZLF+_A=+—0 XEEETH B2 R1443,525,0008 TH EKE ZKIAAEERET A RIR
ITRIZREIR - IR AKRBENMBEARDREBZPIELENFMNERED R  AEE a8 EB S ERIFEIRE
REERUEERNGN A AKERUKEZRBAUAMSHRACERBBESRAEERBRAKR - R-FF
NEFE+TZA=1—RH XAEENRKE HHRBAMERET A RBITRERRR

REER  AEERKEZIFNRBREEBUTIBEARNRE ZRERAEREAEEGTIERFPHEENE
BEHEE
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EWEZFIE (&)

KEME
—BBN\F —BRLEF
B 5 FE T AT
=LBARAE(N=5]) 36(a),(b) 178 572
g RBER AR ([EHH]) 36(a),(b) 11 15
189 587

R-ZBEENF+-_A=+—H  KN&EE193,264,00080( —ZTZT+4 : 350,768,000/ 70 ) E TEKE FR
HB &R - (EAKREBATES TRITEENERHFE27) -

BRI - RERHtEWVKRIEA

REH KA F
—EBENE —ETF —EENF —ETF
FET FAET FET FET
FE B 45,487 65,644 271 249
& K E A fE W FRIE 170,760 100,902 100 =
216,247 166,546 371 249

NEBEYERRILRE - Bt A LRSS B E 2 BT B SRR REGRIEA R -

AHHERE
KEHE
—BBN\F —BRLEF
FE T AT
BONETRAKRE - A 33,306 120,607

FR - AEBEIHEERENLETEGS884,0008 T (—TFF : Iz46,138,0008 L) E EERER T E

e

FRRERERAFHESREEAYEETIHMAXREERNRAESFRE -
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23. AIHHERE &)

N

4.

ARBEFRR  ARHERETAARGEEART —EARER - Filt - ZRESBAGEEEARERMNIE
MENEE °

RILERERBERRER  ARELHRARENT{EL R43,573,00087T °

BERERREBEBHSEF R

rEE KAF
—EENE —EELF —EENF —ETF
FET FET FET FAET
Re RIRTTARH 443,344 304,381 28 25
TE BRTF 3Kk 116,097 154,859 - =
559,441 459,240 28 25
B BIRIRIRTITA SR AT TR (108,933) (53,221) - -
HehERIIREEER 450,508 406,019 28 25

AEBE D IMBRITHE G LT H1F5£81,462,0008 L ( —ZFZ L : 48,609,000 L) EAANEBTES TR
TIEEMERME27) »

ARBEFBEAETSAHRLE  BBESEHTRAREASZTEABFOIINEES - EPERBFMAZHD
AESELPERBANIINETE  SEFELNSEISHRBHATLR - R=2STZN\F+=_A=+—
BXPBAESFERBNEAR SEFRINEERERFELEBH/A157,925,0008 (=TT +F -
79,186,000/ 7T) °

RITRSBBEAERTERMNIIHNRBRBRANE - EHERERARLS—RE=AR - RILEENAEF

REeFRME - WABRNEREHFRAXRNFE - ROTERKRLEERREEFAOHY BN LEEE
AREMERT - RERERARESER LD EREFANIREERFRENQFEREE
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REER  AEEREZAHHENENEZFTARERIREDTOT

REE
—BBN\F —BTEF
FE T FET
3@ AR 1,074,814 927,928
47618 A 438,355 452,583
72121E A 12,095 10,737
HiEF 4,834 7,127
1,530,098 1,398,375
ENESHREBERTFE » B—RERIOEI20KLEE -
AEEREERANENESZRELEEREREMN T HEEARMNKIE  EEHEAEEEMF S HEFATIRE
EHRA
AEH
—EENEF —EELF
B e FET TETT
=& 36(a), (b) 1,073 4,504
B 36(a), (b) 163 1,744
1,236 6,248
HiENSFERESER
REH KA F
—EENE —EELF —EENE —ETLF
FET FAT FET FET
H b S 3RI8 391,107 174,778 - =
FEETE A 179,477 155,732 5,588 3,032
570,584 330,510 5,588 3,032

H s B RIETE AR e
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1 27. HEBTEE
// KEE

‘Q £ T V- BT -
}’ll‘ EEAE(%)  HSR TA% EEARe)  HmA TEn
' yik]
FITEH - HHEA 243-6.05 Z—ETHEF 193,266 5.58-7.45 _—ZTT)\&E 260,915
" RITER— EHH 203-505 Z—EENF 754,062 557 -654 Z—ZTT)\F 496,263
947,328 757,178
E 35k
RITER - EHF 411-518 Z—Z—-F 930,060 =
1,877,388 757,178
AEE
—EENE —EEF
THT T T
B ¢
—F R 947,328 757,178
FZENhF(BIEEREMRT) 930,060 =
1,877,388 757,178
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sTESRITEE#)
o

(a) AEBETHRITERIATYIER (EAEA :
(i) N E R 4B 469,731,000/ T ( —ZTE 4 : 95,978,000/8 70 ) Y L - 5T MK -

(ii) AEER-_ZEZENEFE+-_A=1+—H1193,264,0008 T( ==L : 350,768,000/ 7T ) [EINE 5 FIHK)F
EE

(i)  ANEEA 81,462,000 T ( —ZEE 4 : 48,609,000/8 7T) KA TIRITA R K E 7K
(ivy, EBTHBARRKRGER: &
(v) ARAERERS4A1,521,301,0008 0 (=T =+ : 378,739,000/ 7T) M)A AlHE(R ©

(b) N £ [ bR ™ {E1,857,708,0005% st ( — T = + £ : 643,935,000/ 7t ) « #E( =T T £ 4 : 93,403,000/ T ) &
19,680,000 C( =T Z 4 : 19,840,000 L) HERITTERDBIAETL - ARBRI A ABEN -

(0) AEBEEEIREERE QX FEBLQ -

TTEEmI A
AEH
—EBNE —ETLE
FET T T
RHIE® S 4 24,381 28,256

EHEBEANNREERSREATE - UESRTESRTEANIZHRYBEBRFANRT
AEEFVETEMEEGOURDIINEEX RS RBROTZE - EXFTA RS BEEANRE - BENR

3,875,000 L(ZFZ L F : 51 A20,177,0008 L) FH M ERENTET AR FEEZHERFAERERAME

ol
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5% 29.

P 4
&)
—EEBNE —ETF
FHET TAT
SEERA
2,000,000,000 & & EE0. 178 7T 1D 200,000 200,000
BEIT R ERA
1,000,000,000f% & AR EI1EO0.1& TR 1D 100,000 100,000

ARTVEEREFITRARAEERBE T EHERD -

BB

ARBERARERMBERETS  ERAARERKBREASNARARDBRENFBEHRY B RERME
30

B 40 R B =1 &
(a)  BR 2 BAEE AR AT B AR

RZBEZERFAATER  ARAAEMERXHAERAIERETE - BB XARESTHRABLERER
BRAFERBIBARKE - AT EESR1.2675LiREE2,800,000 AR A& M - THEHE T NF
+—AZHREE_T—RAFEAA+NB(EFEZA) °

NR-ETZRFERHNE R ARSRATERENAFEGBLA1,422,00087T  AEBERBEFERN
#1,422,0008 TiER AR -

FRBEE R R EBABRERITE

(b) KHEBEFE
RZZEZTRFANA+TER ARARRMKHEEE - AB @ NAFIH/RERBARAEE 13,405,550
MR (EfTEARR EMEBMNERLETR)BEEESETRODERFEETIA - RRARMRKRE BIR
BEROEEAHEFARREETEHA N EERANEE I D B T 54,289,776 D 1E A 12E) - BRERMD
EREFRRE - AARaRERMDEE 21 ORI B BT RS 2R E 257 AR O A HRA
[IJE o

BEFEER/EBNRNO D FEMBFA%5,32500087T  CREFFERNBRR/FAX °
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30. R EREMETEI(2)

(c)

BRAFMERKERETE

ARBRILBERARAERKBREE([FHE])  BOERAHAKERDELELERNSGERS
ERHERBHLER - AFNEER2EERE (AP ERB)AREES(BRBIINTES)  AKEH
fEE  AREEYHIRFHER  AREEF  AAKEREHME HARXEMEMIENAL X
SERRARAEEZAAXBERMELHAARRAEENERIERELEMO2EE - RIEFTEEN
HAEEET BB TR+ —AZHBRE_E-—RAFTARBHEBMER -

i

S

BRHERBA S AIRONRITEBREHBE TESIEZRARR B EITRNM30% » REM12
BEAREASERERALTREFSERBEREMAIERTORMNDESHE - UARBNEEHTERN
1% AR - BITRLBEZ EROBREASBRERRAS LHLE -

AAARES  TBTHAR  TEMRABRFZEMBRARLBELRE  BAEEARBBIIFRNTE
EHEE o WS REFMI2EAREARARREIERRABYIFATESTIRENTABHEARKE
At - AT IR EBEA LR R AR A2 HITRM0.1%HABE(RBEARBRONE L B HAOKRTE
% )#8785,000,000/& 7T * AIALEKRREKRRASG LHLE -

ERATTRERBREBHEA2IBAR  SAIXMBTHRBAREZAREBRENES - AIRH
BERENTENRESET  TEHRTHELBREZ ARG YR TERRLERERHES T8
B#R -

BRENTEEHERET  ETFEROBIMEABRERATARRRONERERL A AT
B RNERRH M AERS BB AE A RERMRARBBRD O FHKRHE  Rii)ANAFK
HENKSE °

BRI T TRE ARBRSERN - TEEERRAG LRE -
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30.

BR 10 sk BN 5+ 2 (&)
HRAMEREBRESS (&)
TH A EHBITE TR 4 R 14 5 7T 155 ) B A 1 -

(c)

n—H—H
FRKRY
FARRH

R+—RA=+—H

REFHRARTTEBRENTEERITERNT

—EENF
BREHE

15,810,667
15,810,667
15,810,666
15,678,666
15,678,666

15,678,668

94,468,000

—EENE —TTLF

hnE hntE

F15 B E 15 HE P e

TEE 2B I E Eg=

BRET FRABTT

1.56 50,000,000 1.56 50,000,000

1.63  (2,732,000) _ _

2.75 47,200,000 - -

2.15 94,468,000 1.56 50,000,000
TEE TEH
BB
1.56 7-11-2009%6-11-2016
1.56 7-11-2010%6-11-2016
1.56 7-11-2011%6-11-2016
2.75 7-11-2012%23-4-2018
2.75 7-11-2013%23-4-2018
2.75 7-11-2014%23-4-2018
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30. KR EREMETEI =)
() BARAMEREERESE (&)

—EELF

fE S B 1IfEE* 1715 58
BB TT

16,666,667 1.56 7-11-2009%£6-11-2016

16,666,667 1.56 7-11-2010%£6-11-2016

16,666,666 1.56 7-11-20112£6-11-2016

50,000,000

* BN TTREN RERRARET  REMARARBRATEULIMBE -

FRRAEEERENAFEAES6,567,0008 T(EMD1.208T) BE-_TEEN\F+_-_A=+—HI
FE . AEERAFEMNBEFEMRENERERRERER 16,149,000 T( T+ F :
9,462,000/ 7T) °

FRAMBEABRREEBRENAFEREL ARRARNR - FARBRECEEN G - EP &5
KRB R R AR - TREIIFARARANEIE -

& B U % (%) 2
T8 HAR 18 (%) 52.66
A [ B A1 2K (%) 2.33 - 2.47
BRRENMETHEAFEH(F) 6.54
TRRMBAEER(BT) 2.75

BERENEHFHRBESNGEESH T ERAELEMNITERNER - TRHIKIERBRIAE LK iE
ERAREZHEERR  TT—ERERER -

REtEAFERITESAME HERENEMITE -
REEH  ARFRBEEXNAAERATBIRETZ RTEI#E97,268,00010 M AR ITEERAEE - IRIBARQAIRE
B REE  2HITER NERESEEEEINETTI7,268,00008 A A &) L 3 A% K {3 A% 412 Hn9,727,00078 7T
VAR HER #49197,144,000/8 TR0 %5 8 (FOBR 3 /TR S Al ) ©

REENERBHRRE R - ARFREE R R ERAT R 8 &5t 878 96,594,00017 i RTTEBAE -
HERARRBDETRMAI.7% -
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55' 31. &%
/I (a) #*&£ME

"'ll RAFERBEFEASBERFENCEREBERDFE SNV BRRFISENFREEREHEK -

\ I

' EERH

R B ER HARH HM 5 RZitEE @t

’ FizE TET TAEL FAET FET T
R-ZEZt+F—HF—H 227,127 772,098 8,324 (14,874) 992,675
AEEER 12 - = = (8,432) (8,432)
ARES) Eeer 3 30 - = 9,462 = 9,462
RZBZE+EF
+-A=+—-HEk
—EENF-A—H 227,127 772,098 17,786 (23,306) 993,705
AEEER 12 - - - (11,475) (11,475)
F 1 SR B 2 30 - - 16,149 - 16,149
EEAHRE 13 - (50,000) - - (50,000)
R-_EENF+-_A=1+—H 227,127 722,098 33,935 (34,781) 948,379
RIZEERF  RARAROZEIAREENS AR ANBABRRIEARRBREEBEHMKER
BEERARIMNBMNDAFEBEARARMBEITIEARBRABHORMEENHEEE - RERASESARE ' A
RIEETER N MM ABBRERAREEHDIR
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Bt 7 S 3% B &
—ETNE+-A=+—8
32. ¥WE/
(a) AEEHEXBERATNLELESHH

R-ZEZNE+-_A+HE REBWBEKBAERRATT71%EZ o kB AR A7) AR 5EEE s £ M LAY
AE 2EBE—HPENBAR  BBSER(PIL)BRAR  ZARNEBER SN BEARERE
MHEEMAGRAZER - TR - WENREE UIR£103,445,0008 0% 11 ©

REBHXBARAR RENBARMNAIBAIEERE B QFENR R EZ KA IREED

T
AU SRR
H 2 FE BEAREE
B 5 T T T T
Y%~ BE M 15 211,340 195,340
+ 3 FE 16 16,797 11,797
WEEME  BE RRETEMNIE 50,264 50,264
FE 41,105 41,105
BB TR 98 98
BeMERIRELIER 20,002 20,002
FENFHIE - e REMEKZIE 5,548 5,548
U E 5508 118,314 118,314
ENESRBERERE (109,389) (109,389)
HibhEfSsE R EER (159,113) (159,113)
FTEIBITEE (47,234) (47,234)
EERIE B (E 18 (5,250) -
142,482 126,732
DEIR R A = (41,320)
WEBEENEE 17 2,283
103,445
FERWEE
e 103,445
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=§ 32. ¥8&86t#)

/I (a)

. (b)

FEEEKBERRIANERSH(E)
FRAKEHNBRARNRE REFRRSBERRDFEIMMOT ¢

T T
HeRE (103,445)
PR R ERIRLIEER 20,002
BRAKENBARNESEERIIRSHERB AL F5E (83,443)

BUER  KBERARLKEMBARRBE_ZTNFt A=+ HLFEIER/AKENEER
KA FREERENER °

WEHERENET AEEHNRAREAAGKERE A ARG R AR A7,527,722,0008 T &
643,739,000/ 7T ©

EFRENEEERQIANERSH

RZZZLFAAZT B A5ERBERCEERARIFEIIZT 5% KRE - FRZBELINZETLI% -
ERCEERAR A HREERFMKINERAR  28FE—HATENBARRERERA(R
WBERRR(TEE])  ZRARNEIEEKARERHEEER  HAERBARPREEL - KEREE
IA37 422,815,000 T X A+t o



32. ¥(¥%&8/t)
LEHERCEERATNNERSM(E)
R RSSO LARA T RENE A T A B51EE BB A T 1E bR B 5 U0 A 148 BI0R E A

(b)

mF

ME - BE MK

T b A

WEEME - BE KR ERN KA
&

U E 5 IR
RekEFERAEEHE
BNRIE - RE REMERR
ENESFARER
HEMFARESER

DR E S
W18 28 3R HE R RO R 18 26 7%
BHR AR R
AR

Re

TS N R R EHN DA

B

15
16
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A R R R R
MY E BEREE
T TET
30,711 30,711
1,733 1,733
805 805
18,628 18,628
12,483 12,483
20,088 20,088
140 140
(8,524) (8,524
(3,022) (3,022
73,042 73,042
(18,991)
(4,576)
49,475
22,815
26,660
49,475

)
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¥, 32 XBEEHtw
” (b) EFHRERLCEERATNLRES G (E)

Nl \ BRUBEHBARNESRERBSEA R FESTMT :
"“ FET
" REeRE (22,815)
’ FrieER & M ERIIRESEE 20,088
REKRENBARMNRERERESEB R FEE (2,727)
BUEER  ERCEERAFIREMBATINEE —_E2+F+ _A=1+t—HIIFECAREBNLE
R EB135,689,000/8 7T M B4R A i F 452K 6,912,000/ It H))m A 73 28 o
HMEHFEREFTEYET  AEBEFHRA KR FAS,288,249,000% 7T % 429,144,000/8 7T °
33. HAEE
REER  ANEETETMEARAREE -
REEH ARFRERENBARFMERNEBTEERETIRMEA,747,738,0008 0 ( — T + & -

487,594,000 T )M A TR - MZEEDEEHAA1,521,301,00008 T (ZFBZE 4 : 378,739,000/ 7T) °

REER  AEBRBETIRHECEHOMESHBEERERSBLENIHBENT ¢
—EENF —EELF
FTHT T T

—F N 15,379 15,387

34, REHERIE
AEERBEELHEZHEAETHAEZEMERTE  AELHBAN T —FERE -
F_ERF(BIEERERT) 24,278 27,587

39,657 42,974




F5R 2008 | EREFRIZRARA T

R R

—EE\F+-A=+-A

35. &iE
% E XS4 M CATAEREIN  AEEREERE THIAE -

AEE KA T
—EENE —EEF —EENE —EELF
FBT FH T FTHxT T T
DE 4B R B -
T RIEF 110,015 32,738 - =
25 20,954 12,103 - =
WEg—Ta% & (B 7£39) 296,844 = 296,844 =
4838 N AR 427,813 44,841 296,844 =
36. EALIRS
(a) MBUHFUBERREMBOAFLNRZIN  AEBRFANZEBEATEITTIINEARS °
—EENE —EELF
B 5 THxT T T
M5 AR EREAEERR
=5(1) () 1,446 7,405
ZHd(2) (i) 17 221
M TAARHREEA
25(3) (i) - 10,041
ERNANGIEEEE R
=5 (ii) 104 1,363
=2pl (ii) - 689
MR ARSZ AN EER :
B (iii) - 3,201
=% (iii) - 6,402
mMTIAIALTEZAES
MEBRL I (4) (iv) 61 58
BT B S A (5) (iv) - 16
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e, 36 BEALXRF

) =AMARBEEBI B KL -

" (2) BRBARREEBIERERERGEKEZS
(4) MEBREIA/ARFREZHILEKEMNBS o
(5) BIBEEERARRESE -

iy HERARBEANRKBEZABESHIARABENKRERERE -

(i HEERBEREKANEEHERSEIARABENKREXRETE -
(i) PWXEERZRAESHIARBENKRERETE -

(3) RERAKEBZ/ARNIZMBAR  UREFRAARAMBATR  FEHRBBERMEI2D)

(iv), M&PHBREAESHAEABTHRERETE -
BReRBREBEAN  ERAEEREE—_TT )\ F+ A=+ HILFERETHRZINER LR
BB 4AEFTAENBER IR FERERS °
(b) EEEFEATHRBELES
REERAEEHEEQARNKRBELESFRN P B HRERME21 %25 -
() AEEXTEEBAENHES(TEFBEESZEHE):
—EENE —ETF
FET T T
HHEEREF 7,946 4,460
& B B mE A 5,730 1,760
mMEZEEABNE &A% 13,676 6,220

E—TEEMEFBEN M B RRME -
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BERNESHNEMTA
REHE  SeBITABEFNEEENT :

REE-—TBNF

SRMEE
BEEELIR
DNFEEEA
BEEN BEXRR e
SREE FE W 3k g SRMEE st
FHET FHET FE T THET
A ERE - = 33,306 33,306
U E 5588 = 2,863,214 - 2,863,214
PTEEMmIT A 24,381 = = 24,381
BEREEWKE 5 FIE = 74,205 = 74,205
EEUSEHECERE <P

HAib W RIBR & BB E - 168,566 = 168,566
BRI RITHE S M E BER = 108,933 = 108,933
He ERRESIAEE - 450,508 - 450,508
24,381 3,665,426 33,306 3,723,113

SREas
128 8 AR S B R BY
CA Y=L
FHET
B E S 5E R EE 1,530,098
Bt AEMEMNREREFERANERERE 391,107
BRI E 5 FRIARIRITER 74,205
FTERITEE 1,877,388
3,872,798
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7 37. REBEASNEMIAEH)
” AEE-—FTELF

l“ cHERE

" BIEEE IR
NEEEA
B R ERk Al

’ SREE & W R IE SRMEE 4Bt
T T THET THT TAT
Al ERE = = 120,607 120,607
B E 5588 = 1,582,689 = 1,582,689
BREEWE 55K = 443,525 = 443,525

EFfABMNRIE - Ze &k
HEfEWRIEN S mEE = 100,168 = 100,168
PTHEERT A 28,256 = = 28,256
BIRIRIT S8R R HITF R = 53,221 = 53,221
He hERREIAE = 406,019 = 406,019
28,256 2,585,622 120,607 2,734,485

SREaE

2 S A AR 51 IR 59
TRAE
TAT
B E S HEREE 1,398,375
Eff AEMENZFEREFERNESRHERE 174,965
BRIEEWE 5 HIER IRITEK 443,525
FTRIRITEE 757,178
2,774,043
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37. RENEsHNEMIT A #)

SREE
b NN
—BENF —BTEF
BERK ERk
FE U 5k 8 fE W R TE
FExT FET
UK B A RIFIEFT AR B A al M ks (it 19) 302,735 309,610
He kERIRELIER 28 25
302,763 309,635

38. HEMEREEEREE

BROTEEMRI  ARENTIESRTABRERITER REREHER  ZEeRTATERRAEEKLLEE
BEEED AEEHAEMSBECREENABGNEEKEZIRENBNESFIA T2 REKEEHE
/_:E o

AKENBIUTEERR S, TEBEEMEREY - BNNEERAKEXRBREESHRMELN SRR

B o

AEESRTAMEEANIZRARAMEAR INERE FEAR  RBESABRIEAEREAR -EFE
ERYREEEZHRAROBE  IRTXHL - AEEERITEAERN S BREANR M HRRME33 -

= E B
A E TSR RS B R R B R AR E b T A T B AR -

TRETEMAEMEBEZRFTAEZNERT - ARENGRHAENHAERMEN SR EEHNHRE -
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38.

BREEMREEBEERBE®)

= 7 B (&)

BR B AR A [
EEEmn GEd) i, Gd) #in, CGRd)
FE T FET

—EET)N\F
ETT 50 (9,289) =
ETT (50) 9,289 =

—EETLF
ETT 50 (3,220) =
ETT (50) 3,220 -

* NEERE

S B B
AEEZEURHERRAR - ZERRDASKEEMUEUNNEEEAIINEEETEEMESL -
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HEREEEERBE®)
EEEB

FARBEEABRERNEBREZRARAEEAKRERELEZRBEMEAZNESEERR - AREBRAAT
FPREWEZRBEEAREENEEANEREZRIANIO%(ZZETLF : 83%) UM AKEREKE 5 A
WEERREBAES -

AEERFBEHEFPMMBANETEENE  UESREFREEEMRRD - RIRBBIREY 2 MEKRE HFHIA
B TRHR AT A2 E AE H R BB T EESE -

RAREEMEREE(BRRASNERAREREUREMBEFR)MELANEERRAE  AERERR 57

BAOMAEERERR  AAXNRSRARESRZETLANKEE ASEREGEREERAENEERRIL

ERESS o

AEEBBEAREFERDESTITAERESERNEAR ZTAZREERTARSREE(FINEKE
KRB HBEMEERNRLEHNRSRETRA -

AEENERENZRERRTEN  REESHELEERENTE - i XEBETEHARTEEEER

UTEIARENGEEENERBESIHNA RECFTOERMERTE):

KEE —ZENF
RERR
—FR —ERE BBREE et
FER FER FTET FET
ENESRBRER 1,530,098 - - 1,530,098
A FE 1 5RI8 391,107 = = 391,107
ERIEERE 5 FHIER

RITEK 74,205 - = 74,205
FFERITEE 1,004,149 996,356 - 2,000,505
2,999,559 996,356 - 3,995,915
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2,777,145 = = 2,777,145
% A8 4% EL B

BABRERABRAEEKERENZESFEEEHEHBAZLFAFETRNRAR R_FETNF+_A=1+
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T

—EENE —EENE B LF —EEF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

[ |

=z K
To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited set out on pages 35 to 101,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement

for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)

7// OPINION

// In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
‘ Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
l with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
“ requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor, Two International Finance Centre

8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong
31 March 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December 2008

Notes 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
REVENUE 6 7,249,183 5,275,832
Cost of sales (6,036,177) (4,479,682)
Gross profit 1,213,006 796,150
Other income and gains 6 99,210 94,978
Selling and distribution costs (31,156) (23,671)
Administrative expenses (360,154) (271,942)
Other expenses (26,943) (12,688)
Finance costs 7 (75,113) (99,940)
Share of profit of an associate - 1,312
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 818,850 484,199
Tax 11 (130,280) (57,338)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 688,570 426,861
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 12 658,295 409,988
Minority interests 30,275 16,873
688,570 426,861
DIVIDEND 13 50,000 -
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14
— Basic (HK cents) 65.8 41.0
— Diluted (HK cents) 64.3 40.2
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2008

(/// Notes 2008 2007
//‘ HK$"000 HK$'000
|

l‘{ NON-CURRENT ASSETS

” Property, plant and equipment 15 2,280,183 1,662,323
' Lease premium for land 16 65,219 25,641
' Goodwill 17 4,846 1,065

Deposit for acquisition of an investment 39 104,632 -

plant and equipment 96,916 6,656
Available-for-sale investment 23 33,306 120,607

" Prepayments for acquisition of property,

Total non-current assets 2,585,102 1,816,292

Inventories 20 821,866 727,751

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables 21 2,863,214 1,582,689

Factored trade receivables 21 74,205 443,525
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 22 216,247 166,546
Derivative financial instruments 28 24,381 28,256
Pledged bank balances and time deposits 24 108,933 53,221
Cash and cash equivalents 24 450,508 406,019
Total current assets 4,559,354 3,408,007
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and bills payables 25 1,530,098 1,398,375
Other payables and accruals 26 570,584 330,510
Tax payable 101,685 84,705
Bank advances on factored trade receivables 21 74,205 443,525
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 947,328 757,178
Total current liabilities 3,223,900 3,014,293
NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,335,454 393,714
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,920,556 2,210,006
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

31 December 2008

Notes 2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 930,060 -
Deferred tax liabilities 18 9,081 25,626
Total non-current liabilities 939,141 25,626
Net assets 2,981,415 2,184,380
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Issued capital 29 100,000 100,000
Reserves 31(a) 2,670,280 2,011,143
Proposed final dividend 13 50,000 -
2,820,280 2,111,143
Minority interests 161,135 73,237
Total equity 2,981,415 2,184,380

T S

CHENG Li-Yu HUANG Kuo-Kuang
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2008

7 Attributable to equity holders of the Company
' /// Available-
l Employee for-sale
/I Share share-based Statutory  Exchange investment  Proposed

' Issued  premium Contributed compensation ~ Capital ~ reserve fluctuation ~ Retained revaluation final Minority Total
! Notes  capital  account  surplus reserve reserve fund reserve profits reserve  dividend Total interests equity
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

(Note (c)) ~ (Note (c))  (Note (c)) (Note (b),(c)) (Notes (a),(c)  (Note (c)  (Note ()  (Note (c))

At 1 January 2007 100,000 227,127 420,266 8,324 = 24,056 52,441 662,620 56,171 - 1,551,005 33,690 1,584,695

Change in fair value of an

Exchange realignment - - - - - - 120,176 - - - 120,176 3,683 123,859
available-for-sale investment,

net of deferred tax - - - - - - - - 20,512 - 20,512 - 20,512

Net gains recognised

directly in equity - - - - - - 120,176 - 20,512 - 140,688 3,683 144,371
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 409,988 - - 409,988 16,873 426,861
Total income and expense

for the year - - - - - - 120176 409,988 20,512 - 550,676 20,556 571,232
Acquisition of subsidiaries 32(b) - - - - - - - - - - - 18,991 18,991
Capitalisation of profits - - - - 363,578 - - (363,578) - - - - -
Transfer from retained profits - - - - - 55,691 - (55,691) - - - - -
Share-based compensation

arrangements 30 - - - 9,462 - - - - - - 9,462 - 9,462
At 31 December 2007

and 1 January 2008 100,000 227,127 420,266 17,786 363,578 19747 172,617 653,339 76,683 - 211118 73,237 2,184,380
Exchange realignment - - - - - - 99,577 - - - 99,577 8,476 108,053
Change in fair value of an

available-for-sale investment,

net of deferred tax - - - - - - - - (64,884) - (64,884) - (64,884)
Net gains and losses recognised

directly in equity - - - - - - 99,577 - (64,884) - 34,693 8,476 43,169
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 658,295 - - 658,295 30,275 688,570
Total income and expense

for the year - - - - - - 99,577 658,295  (64,884) - 692,988 38751 731,739
Acquisition of subsidiaries 32(a) - - - - - - - - - - - 41,320 41,320
Acquisition of minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - (24,861)  (24,861)
Transfer from retained profits - - - - - 49 - (49) - - - - -
Capital injection from

a minority shareholder - - - - - - - - - - - 32,688 32,688
Share-based compensation

arrangements 30 - - - 16,149 - - - - - - 16,149 - 16,149
Proposed final dividend 13 - - (50,000) - - - - - - 50,000 - - -
At 31 December 2008 100,000 227,127 370,266 33,935 363,578 79,79 272,194 1,311,585 11,799 50,000 2,820,280 161,135 2,981,415
Notes:
(a) In accordance with the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “Mainland China”), the

Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage of their profits after tax to
the statutory reserve fund. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the subsidiaries’
articles of association, the statutory reserve fund may be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation issue by way
of paid-up capital.

(b) The capital reserve represents profits of the Company’s subsidiaries capitalised during the prior year.

(c) These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,670,280,000 (2007: HK$2,011,143,000) in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Dividend income
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale investment
Depreciation
Amortisation of lease premium for land
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net
Provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories
Equity-settled share option expenses
Excess over the cost of a business combination
Share of profit of an associate

Increase in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in factored trade receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in derivative financial instruments
Increase in trade and bills payables
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals
(Decrease)/increase in bank advances on factored

trade receivables

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Mainland China income tax paid
Overseas income tax paid

Mainland China income tax refunded
Interest received

Interest paid

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December 2008

Notes

0 0 OO0 O O

0o

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
818,850 484,199

75,113 99,940
(10,204) (11,517)
(3,058) (2,166)
- (1,030)
204,891 168,198
792 524
11,097 2,551
42,159 28,524
16,149 9,462
- (4,576)

- (1,312)
1,155,789 772,797
(95,169) (83,001)

(1,162,211) (627,436)
369,320 (69,827)
(44,153) (13,318)

3,875 (20,177)
22,334 570,049
80,961 (21,003)

(369,320) 49,579
(38,574) 557,663
(114,360) (54,114)

(340) (1,154)

1,400 =
10,204 11,517
(75,113) (99,940)

(216,783) 413,972
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2008

Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
Payment of lease premium for land
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment
Purchase of an available-for-sale investment
Proceeds from disposal of an available-for-sale investment
Dividend received
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank balances and time deposits
Increase in a deposit for an acquisition of investment
Increase in prepayments for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Acquisition of minority interests

Acquisition of subsidiaries 32

Net cash outflow from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution by minority shareholders
New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 24
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2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
(555,245) (217,216)
(22,270) (142)

17,685 9,192
- (17,163)

- 18,193

3,058 2,166
(55,614) 103,270
(104,632) =
(39,996) (5,851)
(26,359) =
(83,443) (2,727)
(866,816) (110,278)
32,688 =

3,227,550 1,938,659

(2,154,574) (2,021,582)

1,105,664 (82,923)

22,065 220,771
406,019 179,547
22,424 5,701
450,508 406,019
450,508 406,019
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BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2008

Notes 2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries 19 1,103,568 1,096,463
CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 22 371 249
Cash and cash equivalents 24 28 25
Total current assets 399 274
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals 26 5,588 3,032
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (5,189) (2,758)
Net assets 1,098,379 1,093,705
EQUITY
Issued capital 29 100,000 100,000
Reserves 31(b) 948,379 993,705
Proposed final dividend 13 50,000 -
Total equity 1,098,379 1,093,705

hiE e

CHENG Li-Yu HUANG Kuo-Kuang
Director Director
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2008

™~

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Ju Teng International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of notebook computer

casings.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments and an available-for-sale investment, which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All income, expenses and unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intercompany transactions and intercompany balances within the Group
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. This method involves allocating the cost of the business combinations to the fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The
cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the

acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not held by the Group in the results and

net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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3.1

3.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations and amendments to HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

The adoption of these new interpretations and amendments has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements. There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies applied in
these financial statements.

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 Amendments
HKFRS 8
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2008

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification of Financial Assets

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of HKFRSs and
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements -
Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations®

Business Combinations?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments '

Operating Segments'

Presentation of Financial Statements'

Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation’

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items?

Customer Loyalty Programmes?

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate'

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation*

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners?

Transfer of Assets from Customers?
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2008

7// 3.2

3.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has also issued Improvements to HKFRSs* which sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. Except
for the amendment to HKFRS 5 which is effective for annual periods on or after 1 July 2009, other
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 although there are
separate transitional provisions for each standard.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

N

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

w

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

~

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10,
HKAS 16, HKAS 18, HKAS 19, HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS
34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HKAS 41.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, it has concluded that while the adoption of HKFRS 7 Amendments, HKFRS 8
and HKAS 1 (Revised) may result in new or amended disclosures and the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised),
HKAS 27 (Revised) and HKAS 23 (Revised) may result in changes in accounting policies, these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial

position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly,
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends received

and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a

position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are stated in
the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group’s interests in associates. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates represents the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially measured
at cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. In the case of associates, goodwill
is included in the carrying amount thereof, rather than as a separately identified asset on the consolidated
balance sheet.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed

of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Excess over the cost of business combinations

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries (previously referred to as negative goodwill),

after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwiill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the

recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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('// 3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

//‘ Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill (Continued)

\ An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

l‘ In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
l depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal

of an impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item
of property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as

a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of the items

of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or 5 to 10 years
Machinery 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item

is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each balance sheet date.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) \\\ﬁ
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued) \\\\
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits ‘

are expected to arise from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the ‘
income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. }l
Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery and other items of property, plant and
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of purchase, construction, installation and testing and

capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of construction or installation.

equipment under construction or installation, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when

completed and ready for use.

average basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. The related interest expense is recognised within “finance costs” in the income

statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-bearing borrowings)
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and interest-bearing borrowings are initially stated

expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference

between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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7/ 3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
/I‘ Provisions
\

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
l‘{ event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided

that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

" Dividends

the equity section of the balance sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within
' as a liability.

articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Income tax

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’s memorandum and

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement, or in

equity if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
3 in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Employee benefits

Pension schemes
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
central pension schemes operated by the relevant government authorities. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions
are charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes.
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('// 3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
//‘ Employee benefits (Continued)
| Pension schemes (Continued)
l‘ The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees employed

by the Group’s subsidiary in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with the

rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a Pre-IPO share option scheme, a Post-IPO share option scheme and a share award
plan for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the operations of the Group. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for

equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer, further details of which
are given in note 30 to the financial statements. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken
of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company

("market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents

the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market

condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification which increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and, their income statements
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong

Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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7/// 3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
/I‘ Related parties
|

l A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
‘{ (a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries:
" (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group;

(i) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) ~ has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(d) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (c);

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to

(c) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or its parent;
in (c) or (d); or

A
—h
=

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums for land under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus,
in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group assesses whether a contract contains an embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a
party to it and assesses whether an embedded derivative is required to be separated from the host contract
when the analysis shows that the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to those of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of

the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets, after initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans and

receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets in listed equity securities that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in the other category. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the income
statement. Interest and dividends earned are reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the income statement as “Other income” in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below. Losses arising from the impairment of such investments are recognised
in the income statement as “Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets” and are transferred

from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates with the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date. For investments
where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques
include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market value of another

instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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7// 3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
//‘ Impairment of financial assets
\

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
l‘{ asset or a group financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has

been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount

and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the
use of an allowance account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic

prospect of future recovery.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and significant
changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of
an invoice. The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account.

Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is transferred from equity to the income statement. A provision for impairment
is made for an available-for-sale equity investment when there has been a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination
of what is”significant” or”prolonged” requires judgement. In addition, the Group evaluates other factors,
such as the share price volatility. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale

are not reversed through the income statement.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

o the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to

pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required

to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled
option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is
the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written put
option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred

asset and the option exercise price.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and

form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy

will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, when the services have been rendered; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs capitalised.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to reduce its risks
associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive, and as liabilities when the

fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are taken directly to the income statement for the year.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates

for contracts with similar maturity profiles.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value based on an assessment of their realisability. Write-
downs on inventories are recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact on the carrying value of
inventories and write-down of inventories in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

The carrying amount of inventories as at 31 December 2008 was HK$821,866,000 (2007: HK$727,751,000).

Recognition of equity-settled share option expenses

As detailed in note 30(c) to the financial statements, the Company has granted share options to certain
employees of the Group. The directors have used an external valuer who has applied the Black-Scholes
option pricing model to determine the total fair value of the options granted, which is to be expensed over
the vesting period. Significant estimation of the parameters for applying the Black-Scholes option pricing
model, such as risk-free interest rate, dividend yield, expected volatility and turnover rate of grantees, is
required to be made.

The fair value of options granted for the year ended 31 December 2008 determined using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model was approximately HK$56,567,000.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis,

by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

(a) Business segment

The Group was principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of notebook computer casings.

Therefore, no business segment analysis is presented.
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7/// 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
/l (b) Geographical segments

! In determining the Group's geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the segments based
l‘ on the location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the location
of the assets.

" The following tables present revenue, certain assets and capital expenditure information for the

Group’'s geographical segments for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.
Segment revenue from external customers:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Mainland China 6,722,109 5,011,304
The Republic of China (the “ROC") 519,740 259,548
Others 7,334 4,980
7,249,183 5,275,832
Segment assets:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Mainland China 6,469,842 4,741,172
The ROC 649,007 465,566
Others 25,607 17,561
7,144,456 5,224,299
Segment capital expenditure:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Mainland China 575,749 214,775
The ROC 1,763 2,030
Others 3 411
577,515 217,216
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-
added tax, business tax and government surcharges, after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and

after elimination of all significant intra-group transactions.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, is as follows:

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue
Sale of goods 7,249,183 5,275,832
Other income
Interest income 10,204 11,517
Subcontracting fee income 850 1,232
Sale of scrap materials 43,973 25,606
Dividend income 3,058 2,166
Excess over the cost of a business combination (note 32(b)) - 4,576
Subsidy income - 3,385
Reinvestment tax credit 35,427 -
Others 5,698 11,039
99,210 59,521
Gains
Exchange gains, net - 34,427
Others - 1,030
- 35,457
99,210 94,978
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7/ 7. FINANCE COSTS

// Group
‘ 2008 2007

l‘{ HK$°000 HK$'000

" Interest on bank loans and other loans wholly repayable:
Within five years 75,113 99,932
Over five years - 8
Total interest expense on financial liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss 75,113 99,940
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

=

2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost of inventories sold 5,971,928 4,413,995
Auditors’ remuneration 3,000 2,720
Depreciation 15 204,891 168,198
Amortisation of lease premium for land 16 792 524
Minimum lease payments under operating leases:
Land and buildings 9,727 6,702
Motor vehicles 6,109 6,231
Provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories* 42,159 28,524
Employee benefits expense (excluding directors’
remuneration — note 9):
Wages and salaries, bonuses,
allowances and welfare 793,561 595,772
Equity-settled share option expenses 14,094 8,138
Pension scheme contributions 30,482 16,784
838,137 620,694
Foreign exchange differences, net** 5,684 (34,427)
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment, net** 11,097 2,551
Subsidy income*** - (3,385)
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. N
PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) \\\‘
i Included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated income statement. \\\\

W Included in “Other expenses/(Other income and gains)” on the face of the consolidated income statement. "
***  Various government subsidies have been received for enterprises engaged in highly technological businesses
subsidies.

in Jiangsu Province, Mainland China. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingences relating to these }l

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fees 594 591

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,085 4,641
Equity-settled share option expenses 2,055 1,324
Pension scheme contributions 12 12
7,152 5,977
7,746 6,568
During the current year, certain directors were granted share options in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company further details of which are set out in note 30(c) to
the financial statements. The fair value of such options which has been recognised in the income statement

over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial

statements for the current and prior years is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.



Ju Teng International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2008

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2008

7/1 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

/]‘ The remuneration of each of the directors for the year ended 31 December 2008 is set out below:
!

" Salaries, Equity-settled Pension

“{ allowances and  share option scheme Total
Name of director Fees benefits in kind expenses contributions remuneration
' HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
' Mr. Cheng Li-Yu - 860 - - 860
Mr. Cheng Li-Yen - 774 - - 774
Mr. Huang Kuo-Kuang - 774 682 - 1,456
Mr. Hsieh Wan-Fu - 665 535 - 1,200
Mr. Lo Jung-Te - 731 535 - 1,266
Mr. Tsui Yung Kwok - 1,281 303 12 1,596
Mr. Yu Chwo-Ming 115 - - - 115
Mr. Cherng Chia Jiun 83 - - = 83
Mr. Tsai Wen-Yu 198 - - - 198
Mr. Yip Wai Ming 198 - - - 198
594 5,085 2,055 12 7,746

The remuneration of each of the directors for the year ended 31 December 2007 is set out below:

Salaries,  Equity-settled Pension

allowances and share option scheme Total
Name of director Fees benefits in kind expenses  contributions  remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mr. Cheng Li-Yu - 798 - - 798
Mr. Cheng Li-Yen - 718 - - 718
Mr. Huang Kuo-Kuang - 718 568 - 1,286
Mr. Hsieh Wan-Fu = 617 284 = 901
Mr. Lo Jung-Te - 678 284 - 962
Mr. Tsui Yung Kwok - 1,112 188 12 1,312
Mr. Yu Chwo-Ming 199 - - - 199
Mr. Tsai Wen-Yu 199 - - - 199
Mr. Yip Wai Ming 193 - - - 193
591 4,641 1,324 12 6,568

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive

the year.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included three (2007: four) directors, details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two

(2007: one) non-director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 958 439
Bonuses 160 76
Equity-settled share option expenses 1,341 421
2,459 936

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands
is as follows:

Number of employees
2008 2007

Nil to HK$1,000,000 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 =

—_

N

During the current year, share options were granted under the share option scheme of the Company to the
non-director, highest paid employees in respect of their services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 30(c) to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which
has been recognised in the income statement over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the current and prior years is included in

the above non-director, highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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7, 11. TAX

/ Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided, as the Group did not have any assessable profits arising in
‘ Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax

"l prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations
" and practices in respect thereof.
" 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Provision for the year:
Current — The PRC, excluding Hong Kong
Charge for the year 65,924 46,746
Underprovision in prior years 4,386 1,332
Current — Overseas
Charge for the year 61,014 2,770
Underprovision in prior years 356 1,129
Tax refund (1,400) -
Deferred tax — (note 18) - 5,361
Total tax charge for the year 130,280 57,338
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using the statutory rates for the
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense
at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the
effective tax rates, are as follows:
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TAX (Continued)

Group - 2008
The PRC, excluding
Hong Kong Hong Kong Overseas Total
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HKS$'000 %

Profit/(loss) before tax (24,247) 569,989 273,108 818,850
Tax at the statutory tax rate (4,001) 16.5 130,412 22.9 68,277 25.0 194,688 23.8
Preferential tax rates - - (64,521) (11.3) - - (64,521) (7.9)
Income not subject to tax - - (399) (0.1) (8,250) (3.0) (8,649) (1.1)
Tax refund - - (1,400) (0.2) - - (1,400) (0.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax 4,001 (16.5) 432 - 987 0.4 5,420 0.7
Adjustments in respect of current

tax of previous periods - - 4,386 0.8 356 0.1 4,742 0.6
Tax charge at the Group's

effective rate - - 68,910 121 61,370 22.5 130,280 15.9
Group — 2007

The PRC, excluding
Hong Kong Hong Kong Overseas Total
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %

Profit/(loss) before tax (19,334) 490,028 13,505 484,199
Tax at the statutory tax rate (3,383) 17.5 142,696 29.1 3,376 25.0 142,689 29.5
Preferential tax rates = = (88,034) (18.0) = = (88,034) (18.2)
Income not subject to tax = = = = (823) (6.1) (823) (0.2)
Tax exemption - - (10,864) (2.2) - - (10,864) (2.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax 3,383 (17.5) 2,948 0.6 - - 6,331 13
Adjustments in respect of current

tax of previous periods - - 1,332 0.3 1,129 8.4 2,461 0.5
Write-down of deferred tax assets - - 2,926 0.6 2,652 19.6 5,578 1.2
Tax charge at the Group's

effective rate - - 51,004 10.4 6,334 46.9 57,338 1.9

The 5th Session of the 10th National People’s Congress approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China (the “New Corporate Income Tax Law"”) on 16 March 2007 and the State Council
has announced the Detail Implementation Regulations (the “DIR”) on 6 December 2007, which become
effective from 1 January 2008. According to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, the income tax rates
for both domestic and foreign investment enterprises are unified at 25% effective from 1 January 2008.
Enterprises that are currently entitled to exemptions or reductions from the standard income tax rate for
a fixed term may continue to enjoy such treatment until the fixed term expires.
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7//1 11.

12.

TAX (Continued)

Everyday Computer Components (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (“Everyday Computer”), a subsidiary of the Company,
is subject to a tax rate of 25% (2007: 12%) for the year ended 31 December 2008. In the prior year,
Everyday Computer was subject to corporate income tax in Mainland China at a reduced tax rate of 12% as
it is a foreign investment manufacturing enterprise with export-oriented enterprise status which is eligible
for a 50% corporate income tax reduction after the tax holiday based on the then existing legislation,
interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

Pursuant to an approval document dated 13 April 2004 issued by the Tax Bureau, Suzhou Dazhi Communication
Accessory Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Dazhi”), a subsidiary of the Company, is subject to a preferential tax rate
of 24% as Suzhou Dazhi is also recognised as a foreign investment manufacturing enterprise. In addition,
Suzhou Dazhi, also a foreign investment enterprise, is entitled to full exemption from income tax for two
years starting from the first profitable year which was the year ended 31 December 2003 and a 50% tax
relief for the three years thereafter. However, pursuant to the relevant income tax laws and regulations
in the PRC, Suzhou Dazhi elected to defer its entitlement of the tax exemption to the year commencing
on 1 January 2004 as Suzhou Dazhi had commenced its operations for less than six months in its first
year of entitlement. Suzhou Dazhi was subject to a tax rate of 12.5% (2007: 12%) for the year ended 31
December 2008.

Ju Teng Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“Ju Teng Electronics”), a subsidiary of the Company, which is
located and operates in Shanghai Songjiang Export Processing Zone, was subject to a tax rate of 25%
(2007: 15%) for the year ended 31 December 2008.

WIS Precision (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. (“WIS Precision”), a subsidiary of the Company, was subject to a preferential
tax rate of 24% as WIS Precision is recognised as a foreign investment manufacturing enterprise. Besides,
WIS Precision is also a foreign investment enterprise and is therefore entitled to full exemption from income
tax for two years starting from the first profitable year which was the year ended 31 December 2007 and
a 50% tax relief for the three years thereafter. WIS Precision was exempted from corporate income tax for
the two years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2008 includes a loss of HK$11,475,000 (2007: HK$8,432,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 31(b)).

DIVIDEND
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Proposed final — HK5 cents (2007: Nil) per ordinary share 50,000 -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity \
holders of the Company of HK$658,295,000 (2007: HK$409,988,000) and the 1,000,000,000 shares in ‘
issue during the year. "

holders of the Company of HK$658,295,000 (2007: HK$409,988,000). The weighted average number of
shares used in the calculation is the 1,000,000,000 shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity }l‘
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number of 24,001,990 (2007: 19,372,980) shares )‘

assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive potential shares

into shares.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold and office Motor Construction

buildings improvements ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

31 December 2008
At 31 December 2007 and

at 1 January 2008:

Cost 638,721 3,892 1,340,603 151,194 12,813 14,859 2,162,082

Accumulated depreciation (91,303) (2,923) (339,365) (59,087) (7,081) - (499,759)

Net carrying amount 547,418 969 1,001,238 92,107 5,732 14,859 1,662,323
At 1 January 2008, net of

accumulated depreciation 547,418 969 1,001,238 92,107 5,732 14,859 1,662,323
Additions 11,114 - 123,077 50,334 1,162 369,558 555,245
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32(a)) 57,092 - 107,146 7,251 546 39,305 211,340
Transfers 56,777 501 132,568 46,401 - (236,247) -
Disposals (577) - (18,597) (3,636) (1,067) (4,905) (28,782)
Depreciation provided during the year (33,289) (382) (136,122) (33,075) (2,023) - (204,891)
Exchange realignment 27,278 30 52,064 4,522 290 764 84,948
At 31 December 2008, net of

accumulated depreciation 665,813 1,118 1,261,374 163,904 4,640 183,334 2,280,183
At 31 December 2008:

Cost 816,569 5,549 1,803,574 265,768 12,102 183,334 3,086,896

Accumulated depreciation (150,756) (4,431) (542,200) (101,864) (7,462) - (806,713)

Net carrying amount 665,813 1,118 1,261,374 163,904 4,640 183,334 2,280,183

67




Ju Teng International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2008

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2008

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Group (Continued)

31 December 2007

At 1 January 2007:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2007, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32(b))

Transfers

Disposals

Depreciation provided during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2007, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2007:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

Net book value:

Freehold land outside Hong Kong

Buildings held under medium term leases outside Hong Kong

Furniture,
fixtures

Land and Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
buildings improvements Machinery — equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
566,603 3,238 1,079,148 112,823 11,955 7,246 1,781,013
(55,101) (2,472) (204,881) (34,027) (5,625) - (302,106)
511,502 766 874,267 78,796 6,330 7,246 1,478,907
511,502 766 874,267 78,796 6,330 7,246 1,478,907
9,684 483 153,476 24,364 866 28,343 217,216
14,032 - 15,439 370 870 - 30,711
3,654 - 6,497 6,637 - (16,788) -
(940) - (4,676) (1,053) (670) (4,404) (11,743)
(29,875) (288) (112,768) (23,103) (2,164) - (168,198)
39,361 8 69,003 6,096 500 462 115,430
547,418 969 1,001,238 92,107 5,732 14,859 1,662,323
638,721 3,892 1,340,603 151,194 12,813 14,859 2,162,082
(91,303) (2,923) (339,365) (59,087) (7,081) - (499,759)
547,418 969 1,001,238 92,107 5,732 14,859 1,662,323

The Group’s land and buildings were held under the following lease terms:

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
3,921 3,996
661,892 543,422
665,813 547,418

At 31 December 2008, certain of the Group’s land and buildings and machinery with an aggregate net book
value of approximately HK$62,873,000 (2007: HK$89,338,000) were pledged to secure certain banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 27).

68



16.

17.

Annual Report 2008 | Ju Teng International Holdings Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2008

LEASE PREMIUM FOR LAND

Group

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

Carrying amount at 1 January 25,641 22,489
Addition during the year 22,270 142
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) 16,797 1,733
Recognised during the year (792) (524)
Exchange realignment 1,303 1,801
Carrying amount at 31 December 65,219 25,641

The land of the Group was held under a medium term lease and was situated outside Hong Kong.

At 31 December 2008, certain of the Group's land with an aggregate net book value of approximately
HK$6,858,000 (2007: HK$6,640,000) was pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 27).

GOODWILL
Group

HK$'000
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2007, 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 1,065
Acquisition of minority interests 1,498
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32(a)) 2,283
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2008 4,846
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18. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets

Losses available for offsetting against future taxable profits:

At beginning of year

Deferred tax charged to the income statement
during the year (note 11)

Exchange realignment

At end of year

Group
2008
HK$'000

2007
HK$'000

5,296

(5,361)
65

The Group had tax losses arising in the PRC and the ROC of approximately HK$57,376,000 (2007:
HK$64,101,000) and HK$15,252,000 (2007: HK$12,072,000), respectively, which are available for offsetting

against future taxable profits of the subsidiaries in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not

been recognised in respect of these losses as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities

Group

At 1 January 2008
Deferred tax credited to equity during the year
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32(a))

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of

2008

Fair value
adjustments
arising from
revaluation
of an
available-for-

Gross deferred tax liabilities
at 31 December 2008

subsidiaries sale investment Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

- 25,626 25,626

- (21,795) (21,795)

5,250 - 5,250

5,250 3,831 9,081
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18. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) \\\‘
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) \\
|

Group (Continued)

2007 "
Fair value ‘
adjustments }
arising from

available-for-sale
investment

revaluation of an
HK$'000

At 1 January 2007
Deferred tax debited to equity during the year 25,626

Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2007 25,626

|
e

Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends

distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2008, no deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately HK$412,227,000 at 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).



Ju Teng International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2008

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2008

7/ 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

// Company
‘ 2008 2007

(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.*@

72

Nl“ HK$’000 HK$'000
" Unlisted shares, at cost 777,358 777,358
Due from subsidiaries 302,735 309,610
Capital contribution in respect of share-based compensation 23,475 9,495
‘ 1,103,568 1,096,463
The amounts advanced to the subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. In the opinion of the Company’s directors, these advances are considered as quasi-equity loans
to the subsidiaries. The carrying amounts of the amounts due from subsidiaries approximate to their fair
values.
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
Nominal value of
Place issued and paid up Equity interest
of incorporation/ share/registered attributable to
Company name registration capital the Company Principal activities
Direct Indirect
Best Alliance Holding Inc. British Virgin US$52,600,000 100% = Investment
Islands ("BVI") Ordinary holding
Giant Glory International Limited ~ Samoa US$49,777,419 - 100% Investment
Ordinary holding and
sale of notebook
computer casings
and related
materials
Step Fine International Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100% Investment
Investment Limited Ordinary holding
Everyday Computer Components  The PRC US$52,500,000 - 100% Manufacture and

sale of notebook
computer casings
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Company name

Suzhou Dazhi Communication
Accessory Co., Ltd.*@

Jiu De International Limited

Jiu Ding International Limited

Sincere Joy Corporation

Tri-Great International Limited

Applied Business Company Inc.

ICAN Business Limited

Gi Li Co., Ltd. @

Hempton International Limited

Perfect Base Holdings Limited

Ju Teng Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*@

Place
of incorporation/
registration

The PRC

Samoa

Samoa

Samoa

Samoa

BVI

BVI

The ROC

Samoa

Hong Kong

The PRC

Nominal value of
issued and paid up
share/registered
capital

US$83,500,000

US$12,800,000
Ordinary

US$12,800,000
Ordinary

US$1,000,000
Ordinary

US$1,000,000
Ordinary

US$1,500,000
Ordinary

US$1,500,000
Ordinary

NT$5,000,000
Ordinary

US$3,500,000
Ordinary

HK$100,000
Ordinary

US$12,500,000

73

Equity interest

attributable to

the Company
Direct Indirect

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

31 December 2008

Principal activities

Manufacture and
sale of notebook
computer casings

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Sale of notebook
computer casings

Dormant

Sale of notebook
computer casings

Sale of notebook
computer casings
and related

materials

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Manufacture and
sale of notebook
computer casings
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7/ 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

'I/I Nominal value of
" | Place issued and paid up Equity interest
" of incorporation/ share/registered attributable to
‘( Company name registration capital the Company
' Direct Indirect
"' Grand Develop Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%
" Investments Limited Ordinary
' | Mindforce Holdings Limited BVI US$25,000,000 = 71%
Skywarp Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 = 71%
Ordinary
WIS Precision (Kunshan) The PRC US$25,000,000 - 71%
Co., Ltd.*@

Plentimark Limited BVI US$50,000 - 71%
Dynamic Apex Macao Commercial ~ Macau MOP$100,000 = 100%
Offshore Limited @

Smart Success Enterprises Samoa US$6,000,000 - 100%
Limited @ Ordinary

Prime Cheer International Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100%
Ordinary

Chengyang Precision Mold The PRC US$5,000,000 = 100%

(Kunshan) Co., Ltd.*@
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materials for the
manufacture
of notebook
computer casings

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Manufacture and
sale of moulds
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Company name registration capital the Company Principal activities
Direct Indirect
Willtech International Limited @  Samoa NT$2,000,000 - 100% Investment
holding
REARERLAA @ The ROC NT$2,000,000 - 100% Sale of moulds
Gold Connection Limited# Samoa US$13,447,128 - 711% Investment
Ordinary holding
Fullerton Ltd.# Samoa US$11,449,800 = 71% Investment holding
Ordinary and trading
Lian-Yi (Far East) Ltd.# The ROC NT$5,000,000 - 71% Trading of
Ordinary computer
equipments and
peripherals and
import and export
trading business
Lian-Yi Precision (Zhongshan) The PRC US$13,100,000 - 1% Research, design,
Inc.*# product
development and
manufacture
of computer
equipments and
peripherals
BUTBEERERD A+ The PRC US$500,000 - 71% Research, design,
product
development and
manufacture
of computer
equipments and
peripherals
* Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law.
@ Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
# Acquired/incorporated during the year.

Nominal value of
Place issued and paid up

of incorporation/ share/registered
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7, 20

INVENTORIES
Group

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Production materials 413,021 380,303
Work in progress 203,543 213,600
Finished goods 121,580 98,726
Moulds and consumable tools 83,722 35,122
821,866 727,751

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The general credit terms of the Group range from 90 days to 120 days. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables and factored trade receivables as at the balance sheet
date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade receivables

Within 3 months 1,827,885 1,159,938
4 to 6 months 1,030,249 417,778
7 to 12 months 3,491 3,654
Over 1 year 1,589 1,319
2,863,214 1,582,689

Factored trade receivables
Within 3 months 74,205 172,345
4 to 6 months - 271,180
74,205 443,525

76



21.

Annual Report 2008 | Ju Teng International Holdings Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2008

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Neither past due nor impaired 2,799,044 1,442,484
1 to 3 months past due 61,082 135,476
4 to 6 months past due 1,696 3,174
7 to 12 months past due 963 162
Over 1 year 429 1,393
2,863,214 1,582,689

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a number of diversified customers for whom

there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does

not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

As at 31 December 2007, certain subsidiaries of the Group had factored trade receivables of HK$443,525,000
to banks on a without-recourse basis for cash. As the subsidiaries of the Group still retained the risks and
rewards associated with the delay in payment by the customers, the financial asset derecognition conditions
as stipulated in HKAS 39 have not been fulfilled. Accordingly, the proceeds from the factoring of the
Group's trade receivables have been accounted for as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. As at 31
December 2008, the factored trade receivables are factored to banks on a with-recourse basis for cash.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables at the balance sheet date were amounts due from the following

related companies, which are repayable on credit terms similar to those offered to the major customers
of the Group:
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7/// 21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Group
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
San Li Company Limited (“San Li") 36(a),(b) 178 572
Sunrise Plastic Injection Company
Limited (“Sunrise”) 36(a),(b) 11 15
189 587

At 31 December 2008, certain of the Group’s trade receivables amounting to HK$193,264,000 (2007:
HK$350,768,000), were pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27).

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Prepayments 45,487 65,644 271 249
Deposits and other receivables 170,760 100,902 100 -
216,247 166,546 371 249

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Overseas listed equity investment, at market value 33,306 120,607

During the year, the gross loss of the Group’s available-for-sale investment recognised directly in equity
amounted to HK$64,884,000 (2007: Gain of HK$46,138,000).

The above investment represents an investment in equity securities which were designated as available-
for-sale financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT (Continued)

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the available-for-sale investment is not expected to be realised
within 12 months after the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the investment is classified as a non-current
asset in the consolidated balance sheet.

The market value of the Group’s listed equity investment at the date of approval of these financial statements
was approximately HK$43,573,000.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Cash and bank balances 443,344 304,381 28 25
Time deposits 116,097 154,859 - =
559,441 459,240 28 25
Less: Pledged bank balances
and time deposits (108,933) (53,221) - -
Cash and cash equivalents 450,508 406,019 28 25

The Group's pledged bank balances and time deposits of HK$81,462,000 (2007: HK$48,609,000) were
applied to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27).

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in Mainland China and the remittance of funds out of Mainland
China is subject to exchange restriction imposed by the PRC government. Companies incorporated in
the ROC are subject to certain controls in the remittance of funds out of the ROC up to a certain limit
for each calendar year. As at 31 December 2008, the cash and cash equivalents which were subject to
exchange and/or remittance restrictions in the Mainland China or the ROC amounted to approximately
HK$157,925,000 (2007: HK$79,186,000).

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits approximate to their
fair values.
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TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables as at the balance sheet date, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

Within 3 months
4 to 6 months
7 to 12 months

Over 1 year

Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,074,814 927,928
438,355 452,583
12,095 10,737
4,834 7,127
1,530,098 1,398,375

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90 to 120 days terms.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills payables at the balance sheet date were amounts due to the

following related companies, which have credit terms similar to those offered by the Group’s other major

suppliers:
Group

2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
San Li 36(a), (b) 1,073 4,504
Sunrise 36(a), (b) 163 1,744
1,236 6,248

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Other payables 391,107 174,778 - -
Accruals 179,477 155,732 5,588 3,032
570,584 330,510 5,588 3,032

Other payables are non-interest-bearing.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

Group
2008 2007
Effective Effective
Interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000

Current
Bank loans - secured 2.43 - 6.05 2009 193,266 5.58 - 7.45 2008 260,915
Bank loans - unsecured 2.03 - 5.05 2009 754,062 5.57 - 6.54 2008 496,263

947,328 757,178

Non-current
Bank loans - unsecured 4.11-5.18 2011 930,060 -
1,877,388 757,178

Group

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000

Repayable:
Within one year 947,328 757,178
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 930,060 -
1,877,388 757,178
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Certain of the Group's bank loans were secured by:

(i) charges over the Group’s land and buildings and machinery with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$69,731,000 (2007: HK$95,978,000);

(i) floating charges over certain of the Group’s trade receivables of HK$193,264,000 (2007: HK$350,768,000)
in aggregate at 31 December 2008;

(iii) the pledge of certain of the Group's bank balances and time deposits amounting to HK$81,462,000
(2007: HK$48,609,000);

(iv) the pledge of shares in certain subsidiaries; and

(v) corporate guarantees executed by the Company to the extent of HK$1,521,301,000 (2007:
HK$378,739,000).

(b) The Group’s bank loans with carrying amounts of HK$1,857,708,000 (2007: HK$643,935,000), nil (2007:
HK$93,403,000) and HK$19,680,000 (2007: HK$19,840,000) are denominated in US$, RMB and NT$,
respectively.

(c) The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings approximate to their fair values.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Forward currency contracts 24,381 28,256

The carrying amount of forward currency contracts is the same as their fair value. The above transactions
involving derivative financial instruments are with creditworthy banks.

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts to reduce its exposure to foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations, which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in fair value of
non-hedging currency derivatives, amounting to a charge of HK$3,875,000 (2007: credit of HK$20,177,000)
were recognised in the income statement during the year.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Shares
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each 100,000 100,000

There is no change in the Company’s authorised and issued share capital during the current and prior

years.

Share options

Details of the Company’s Pre-IPO share option scheme, Post-IPO share option scheme and the share options

granted are included in note 30 to the financial statements.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

(a)

(b)

Pre-IPO share option scheme

On 17 June 2005, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme. On the same day, Pre-
IPO share options were granted to Mr. Tsui Yung Kwok, a director of the Company, for subscribing
2,800,000 shares in the Company at an exercise price of HK$1.26 per share. The exercise period
commenced from 3 November 2006 and ends on and includes 16 June 2015.

The fair value of the Pre-IPO share options granted in 2005 was estimated at approximately
HK$1,422,000, of which the Group recognised an expense of HK$1,422,000 in the prior years.

No Pre-IPO share option was exercised during the year.

Share award plan

On 17 June 2005, the Company adopted a share award plan. On the same day, a total of 13,405,550
shares (after the capitalisation issue in connection with the listing of the Company) in the Company
were transferred to the trustee of the share award plan by certain shareholders of the Company at
nil consideration. On the same day, the Company awarded a total of 4,289,776 shares to Mr. Huang
Kuo-Kuang, a director of the Company, and certain employees of the Group under the share award
plan, which had vested in the prior years. The shares awarded by the Company under the share

award plan are accounted for as share-based payments under HKFRS 2.

The fair value of the shares awarded during the prior years was estimated at approximately
HK$5,325,000 which was recognised as an expense in the prior years.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

(c)

Post-IPO share option scheme

The Company operates a Post-IPO share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include, among others, the Group’s directors, including independent
non-executive directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, persons that provide research, development or other technological support
to the Group, the Group’s shareholders and the advisers or consultants of the Group and participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of the Group. The Scheme
became effective on 3 November 2005 and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for a period to 5 October 2015.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under the
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or
to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Company’'s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within

any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the directors, which period may commence from the
date of the offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from
the date of the offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.
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30. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)
(c) Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

2008 2007

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options

HK$ HK$

per share per share
At 1 January 1.56 50,000,000 1.56 50,000,000
Lapsed during the year 1.63 (2,732,000) - -
Granted during the year 2.75 47,200,000 - -
At 31 December 2.15 94,468,000 1.56 50,000,000

No share options were exercised during the current and prior years.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the balance sheet
date are as follows:

2008
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
HK$

per share
15,810,667 1.56 7-11-2009 to 6-11-2016
15,810,667 1.56 7-11-2010 to 6-11-2016
15,810,666 1.56 7-11-2011 to 6-11-2016
15,678,666 2.75 7-11-2012 to 23-4-2018
15,678,666 2.75 7-11-2013 to 23-4-2018
15,678,668 2.75 7-11-2014 to 23-4-2018
94,468,000
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

2007
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
HK$

per share
16,666,667 1.56 7-11-2009 to 6-11-2016
16,666,667 1.56 7-11-2010 to 6-11-2016
16,666,666 1.56 7-11-2011 to 6-11-2016
50,000,000

*

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was HK$56,567,000 (HK$1.20 each).
The Group recognised a share option expense of HK$16,149,000 (2007: HK$9,462,000) during the
year ended 31 December 2008 in respect of share options granted in the current and prior years.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was estimated as at the date
of grant, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 2
Expected volatility (%) 52.66
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2.33 -2.47
Weighted average expected life of options (year) 6.54
Underlying price per share (HK$) 2.75

The expected life of the options is based on the directors’ estimation and is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 97,268,000 share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO
share option scheme and the Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 97,268,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of HK$9,727,000 and share premium of approximately

HK$197,144,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 96,594,000 share options outstanding
under the Pre-IPO share option scheme and the Scheme, which represented approximately 9.7% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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‘
31. RESERVES \\\‘
(a) Group \\\\
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years ‘
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 38 of the financial ‘\
statements.
(b) Company }l‘
Employee
Share share-based

premium  Contributed compensation Accumulated

account surplus reserve losses Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2007 227,127 772,098 8,324 (14,874) 992,675
Loss for the year 12 - - - (8,432) (8,432)
Share-based compensation
arrangements 30 - - 9,462 - 9,462
At 31 December 2007
and 1 January 2008 227,127 772,098 17,786 (23,306) 993,705
Loss for the year 12 - - - (11,475) (11,475)
Share-based compensation
arrangements 30 - - 16,149 - 16,149
Proposed final dividend 13 - (50,000) - - (50,000)
As 31 December 2008 227,127 722,098 33,935 (34,781) 948,379
The Company'’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the shares of intermediate
holding company acquired by the Company pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2005 for
the purpose of the initial public offering of the shares of the Company, over the nominal value

of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, a company may make distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus in certain

circumstances.
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7/ 32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

/I‘ (a) Business combination of Gold Connection Limited in the current year
|

' On 19 December 2008, the Group acquired a 71% interest in Gold Connection Limited. Gold
’ ll‘{ Connection Limited, a company incorporated in Samoa, has a wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC,
’ namely, Lian-Yi Precision (Zhongshan) Inc. ("Bz= B2 (F 1) BR2A&"), which is principally engaged in
" the manufacture and sale of computer parts and peripherals in Mainland China. The consideration for

' the acquisition was in the form of cash of HK$103,445,000, which has been paid during the year.

as at the date of acquisition and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the
acquisition were as follows:

" The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Gold Connection Limited and its subsidiaries
Fair value Previous

recognised carrying

on acquisition amount

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

Property, plant and equipment 15 211,340 195,340
Lease premium for land 16 16,797 11,797
Prepayments for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 50,264 50,264
Inventories 41,105 41,105
Pledged deposit 98 98
Cash and cash equivalents 20,002 20,002
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 5,548 5,548
Trade receivables 118,314 118,314
Trade and bills payables (109,389) (109,389)
Other payables and accruals (159,113) (159,113)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (47,234) (47,234)
Deferred tax liabilities 18 (5,250) -
142,482 126,732
Minority interests (41,320)
Goodwill on acquisition 17 2,283
103,445
Satisfied by:
Cash 103,445
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination of Gold Connection Limited in the current year (Continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries

is as follows:
HK$'000
Cash consideration (103,445)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 20,002
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries (83,443)

Since the acquisition, Gold Connection Limited and its subsidiaries had no significant contribution

to the Group’s turnover and net profit for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue of the Group and the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year would have been HK$7,527,722,000
and HK$643,739,000.

Business combination of Smart Success Enterprises Limited in the prior year

On 21 September 2007, the Group acquired a further 37.5% equity interest in Smart Success
Enterprises Limited to increase the total equity interest to 74%. Smart Success Enterprises Limited,
a company incorporated in Samoa, has a wholly-owned PRC subsidiary, Chengyang Precision Mold
(Kunshan) Company Limited (“Chengyang”) (“EHEREL(EIL)BER AT "), which is principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of moulds with manufacturing facilities located in Kunshan,
the PRC. The consideration for the acquisition was in the form of cash of HK$22,815,000, which
has been paid.

I\‘
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7/ 32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

‘ (Continued)

" the acquisition were as follows:

/l (b) Business combination of Smart Success Enterprises Limited in the prior year

l‘ The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Smart Success Enterprises Limited and its
subsidiaries as at the date of acquisition and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately before

Fair value Previous
recognised carrying
on acquisition amount
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Property, plant and equipment 15 30,711 30,711
Lease premium for land 16 1,733 1,733
Prepayments for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 805 805
Inventories 18,628 18,628
Trade receivables 12,483 12,483
Cash and cash equivalents 20,088 20,088
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 140 140
Trade and bills payables (8,524) (8,524)
Other payables and accruals (3,022) (3,022)
73,042 73,042
Minority interests (18,991)
Excess over the cost of a business combination
recognised in the income statement 6 (4,576)
49,475
Satisfied by:
Cash 22,815
Reclassification from an interest in an associate 26,660
49,475
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) \‘

33.

34.

(b)

(2007: HK$487,594,000) to banks in connection with banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries, which
were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$1,521,301,000 (2007: HK$378,739,000).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its offices properties and motor vehicles under operating lease arrangements,

with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within one year 15,379 15,387
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 24,278 27,587
39,657 42,974

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the balance sheet date, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.
At the balance sheet date, the Company had provided corporate guarantees of approximately HK$1,747,738,000
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Business combination of Smart Success Enterprises Limited in the prior year \
(Continued) ‘

)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries ‘\
HK$'000 }l‘

Cash consideration (22,815) ‘

\
'

is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents acquired 20,088

Since the acquisition, Smart Success Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries contributed HK$35,689,000
to the Group's turnover and contributed a net profit of HK$6,912,000 to the consolidated profit for
the year ended 31 December 2007.

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries (2,727)
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the prior year, the revenue of the Group and the

profit of the Group for the prior year would have been HK$5,288,249,000 and HK$429,144,000.
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35.

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 34 above, the Group had the following
commitments as at the balance sheet date:

Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Contracted, but not provided for:
Land and buildings 110,015 32,738 - -
Machinery 20,954 12,103 - -
Acquisition of an investment (note 39) 296,844 - 296,844 -
Total capital commitments 427,813 44,841 296,844 -

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties during the year.

2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Purchase of production materials from:
San Li (1) (i) 1,446 7,405
Sunrise (2) (i) 17 221
Purchase of moulds from:
Chengyang (3) (i) - 10,041
Sale of finished goods to:
San Li (ii) 104 1,363
Sunrise (i) - 689
Technological support fees paid to:
Sunrise (iii) - 3,201
San Li (iii) - 6,402
Rental expenses paid to:
Ms. Lin Mei-Li (4) (iv) 61 58
Mr. Cheng Li-Yu (5) (iv) - 16
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes:
(1) San Li is controlled by Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company.
(2) Sunrise is controlled by Mr. Cheng Li-Yen's family, a director of the Company, and his family members.

(3) Chengyang was a principal subsidiary of the Group's associate, which became a subsidiary of the Company

in the prior year as further detailed in note 32(b) to the financial statements.
(4) Ms. Lin Mei-Li is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company.
(5) Mr. Cheng Li-Yu is a director of the Company.

(i) The purchase prices for production materials and moulds were determined at rates mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

(ii) The selling prices of production materials and finished goods were determined at rates mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

(iii)  The technological support fees were determined at rates mutually agreed between the relevant
parties.

(iv)  The rentals were determined at rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

Apart from the purchase of moulds from Chengyang, the above transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2008 also constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s balances with its related companies as at the balance sheet date are included
in notes 21 and 25 to the financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group (excluding directors’ remuneration):

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

Short term employee benefits 7,946 4,460
Employee share-based compensation expenses 5,730 1,760
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 13,676 6,220

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial statements.
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as follows:
l‘{ Group - 2008

" Financial assets

Available-for-sale investment
Trade receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Factored trade receivables
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Pledged bank balances and time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade and bills payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals

t 2008

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial
assets at fair

/]‘ The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are
|

value through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial

trading receivables assets Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

- - 33,306 33,306

- 2,863,214 - 2,863,214

24,381 - - 24,381

- 74,205 - 74,205

- 168,566 - 168,566

- 108,933 - 108,933

- 450,508 - 450,508

24,381 3,665,426 33,306 3,723,113

Bank advances on factored trade receivables

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

94

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

HK$000

1,530,098
391,107
74,205
1,877,388

3,872,798
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued)

Group — 2007
Financial assets

Financial
assets at fair

value through Available-

profit or loss for-sale

— held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Available-for-sale investment - - 120,607 120,607
Trade receivables - 1,582,689 - 1,582,689
Factored trade receivables - 443,525 - 443,525

Financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables - 100,168 - 100,168
Derivative financial instruments 28,256 - - 28,256
Pledged bank balances and time deposits - 53,221 - 53,221
Cash and cash equivalents - 406,019 - 406,019
28,256 2,585,622 120,607 2,734,485

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

HK$'000

Trade and bills payables 1,398,375
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals 174,965
Bank advances on factored trade receivables 443,525
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 757,178
2,774,043
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7//1 37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued)

Financial assets

Company
2008 2007
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
HK$'000 HK$'000
Due from subsidiaries included in interests in subsidiaries (note 79) 302,735 309,610
Cash and cash equivalents 28 25
302,763 309,635

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and
short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the currency risks arising from the Group's operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation
to derivatives are set out in note 3.3 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt
obligations denominated in United States dollars with a floating interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/
(decrease) in profit before (decrease) in
basis points tax equity*
HK$'000 HK$'000
2008
United States dollar 50 (9,289) -
United States dollar (50) 9,289 -
2007
United States dollar 50 (3,220) -
United States dollar (50) 3,220 -

* Excluding retained profits

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating

units in currencies other than the units’ functional currency.

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily to certain
trade receivables, trade and bills payables and certain cash and cash equivalents in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Group’s operating subsidiaries. The Group uses derivative financial instruments
to reduce its foreign currency risk, but the transactions do not qualify for hedge accounting.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change
in the Renminbi and New Taiwan dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax and the Group’s equity.

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
exchange in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
% HK$000 HK$'000
2008
If United States dollar strengthens against Renminbi 4.286 18,144 -
If United States dollar weakens against Renminbi (4.286) (18,144) -
2007
If United States dollar strengthens against Renminbi 6.635 11,423 -
If United States dollar weakens against Renminbi (6.635) (11,423) -

* Excluding retained profits
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade receivables included in the consolidated balance sheet represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s trade receivables. The Group has a significant
concentration of credit risk in relation to trade receivables as the trade receivables due from the five largest
customers accounted for 90% (2007: 83%) of the Group’s trade receivables at the balance sheet date.

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions and requires no
collateral from its customers. The allowance for doubtful debts is based upon a review of the expected
collectibility of all trade receivables.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, comprising cash and cash
equivalents and other receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure being equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. There is no significant

concentration of credit risk within the Group in relation to the other financial assets.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and

projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank loans. In addition, banking facilities have been put in place for contingency purposes.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group 2008
On demand or 2to5 Over
within 1 year years 5 years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade and bills payables 1,530,098 - - 1,530,098
Other payables 391,107 - - 391,107
Bank advances on factored
trade receivables 74,205 - - 74,205
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,004,149 996,356 - 2,000,505
2,999,559 996,356 - 3,995,915
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Group 2007
On demand or 2to5 Over
within 1 year years 5 years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade and bills payables 1,398,375 - - 1,398,375
Other payables 174,778 - - 174,778
Bank advances on factored

trade receivables 443,525 - - 443,525
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 760,467 - - 760,467
2,777,145 - - 2,777,145

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in the
levels of equity indices and the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from individual equity investment classified as available-for-sale investment (note 23) as at 31
December 2008. The Group’s listed investment is listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation and is

valued at quoted market price at the balance sheet date.

The market equity index for the following stock exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the balance sheet date, and their respective highest and lowest points during the year
were as follows:

31 December High/low 31 December High/low

2008 2008 2007 2007

Taiwan — TSEC Weighted Index 4,591 9,310/ 8,506 9,860/
3,955 7,306

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the fair value of the
equity investment, with all other variables held constant and before any impact on deferred tax, based on
its carrying amount at the balance sheet date. For the purpose of this analysis, for the available-for-sale
equity investment the impact is deemed to be on the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve and
no account is given for factors such as impairment which might impact on the income statement.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk (Continued)

2008
Investment listed in:
Taiwan — Available-for-sale

2007
Investment listed in:
Taiwan — Available-for-sale

* Excluding retained profits

Capital management

Carrying

amount of

equity

investment

HK$'000

33,306
33,306

120,607
120,607

Increase/
(decrease)
in equity
price

%

75.31
(75.31)

57.31
(57.31)

Increase/

(decrease)

in equity*
HK$'000

18,813
(18,813)

51,839
(51,839)

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue

as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise

shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic

conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally

imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the

years ended 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as the total bank borrowings over

the total assets. The gearing ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

Total bank borrowings

Total non-current assets
Total current assets

Total assets

Gearing ratio

100

Group

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,877,388 757,178
2,585,102 1,816,292
4,559,354 3,408,007
7,144,456 5,224,299
26% 14%
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 28 October 2008, the Company entered into (i) an acquisition agreement with Compal Electronics,
Inc. (“Compal”) for the acquisition of 3,400,000 shares in Wah Yuen Technology Holding Limited (“Wah
Yuen”) at a cash consideration of HK$52,703,000 (US$6,800,000) and (ii) a subscription agreement
for the subscription with Wah Yuen of 54,971,903 new shares in Wah Yuen at a cash consideration of
HK$348,773,000 (US$45,000,000). The aggregate of 58,371,903 shares in Wah Yuen to be subscribed for
and acquired by the Group shall represent approximately 53.4% of the enlarged issued share capital of
Wah Yuen. Wah Yuen is a private company incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius with limited liability.
Wah Yuen and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design, development, manufacture and sale
of magnesium alloy casing for notebook computers with manufacturing facilities located in Jurong City of
Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has paid HK$104,632,000 (US$13,500,000) to Wah Yuen as deposit
under the subscription agreement. The aforesaid subscription and acquisition of shares were completed
on 16 March 2009. The Group paid the remaining balance of the consideration for the subscription and
the acquisition amounting to HK$296,844,000 (US$38,300,000) in March 2009. Because the acquisition
of Wah Yuen was effected shortly before the approval of these financial statements, it is not practicable
to disclose further details about the acquisition in respect of the fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Wah Yuen group as at the date of acquisition, the corresponding carrying amounts immediately
before the acquisition, and the amount of any excess over the cost of a business combination or recognition
of goodwill.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March
2009.
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